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Take a break from a busy world of turmoil and stress. 

Discover the peace and tranquility at Pegasus Reef Hotel - 

a luxurious tropical getaway overlooking the Indian 

Ocean. At Pegasus, we have ine-tuned the art of business 

of pleasure, offering guests a destination experience that 

combines plush accommodation coupled with ine dining 

and outdoor activities. We also offer the full range of 

services for business conferences, weddings and meetings.

Result : A successful business and a pleased clientele. 

      A win - win for all !
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OuR PRImARy fOcus 
Is TO PROvIDe An 
unmATcHAble guesT 
exPeRIence.
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180
ROOms
24HOuR

seRvIce2unIque 
lOcATIOns
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An exclusive feature of our hotels is their different 
value propositions. The Pegasus Reef Hotel, situated 
between the Katunayaka Airport and colombo 
metropolis, is a city Resort which serves both 
business and leisure travellers alike. In comparison, 
the giritale Hotel, located in the tranquil ancient city 
of Polonnaruwa, overlooking the minneriya tank 
is an ideal destination for wild life enthusiasts and 
ancient culture followers.

124,639guesTs
seRveD DuRIng 
THe yeAR
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FINANCIAL 
HIGHLIGHTS

(All igures in sri lankan Rupees thousands) 2015 2014

Revenue 510,255 452,205

gross proit 229,626 194,222

Proit from operations 92,365 67,913

Proit before taxation 110,326 75,332

Proit for the year 95,868 66,556

earnings per share (Rs.) 3.15 2.19

Dividend per share (Rs.) 0.50 0.50

Total assets 1,589,933 1,530,972

shareholders’ equity 1,472,421 1,392,824

net assets per share (Rs.) 48.45 45.83

Financial ratios

gross proit (%) 45 43

net proit (%) 19 15

Return on equity (%) 7 5

current ratio (times) 2.7 1.5

Debt to equity (%) - 2.6

market price per share (Rs.) 41 37

Occupancy (%) 49 47
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GP Margin

46%

PegAsus Reef 
HOTel

39%

gIRITAle
HOTel

45%
strong growth in banquet Revenue during the 

period under review contributed towards higher 
margins.

Market Cap (Rs.)

1,246mn
13 times Trailing P/e multiple
based on fy 14/15 ePs

Group Revenue (Rs.)

510mn
A 13% increase in Revenue  
compared to that of financial
year 13/14 
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2014 WAs yeT AnOTHeR 
mIlesTOne yeAR fOR sRI lAnKA 
TOuRIsm, As TOuRIsT ARRIvAls 
suRPAsseD THe 1.5 mIllIOn 
mARK fOR THe fIRsT TIme In 
HIsTORy...
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CHAIRMAN’S 
STATEMENT

Dear Shareholder,

On behalf of the board of Directors, I take great 
pleasure in presenting the Annual Report and 
consolidated Audited financial statements of 
Pegasus Hotels of ceylon Plc for the inancial 
year ended 31st march 2015.

The year 2014 was yet another milestone 
year for sri lanka Tourism, as tourist arrivals 
surpassed the 1.5 mn mark for the irst time in 
history, depicting a year-on-year increase of 
19.8%. Arrivals from china rose signiicantly 
during the calendar year concluded, in relection 
of the exponential growth the world has seen in 
chinese Outbound Tourism since of late. 

In line with the increase in arrivals, earnings 
from Tourism too improved by 28.6% year-on-
year, to reach usD 2.2 bn in 2014, contributing 
positively towards the country’s external sector 
and the overall economy, which expanded  by 
7.4% during the year, keeping pace with  post 
war growth.

Along with the positive trends witnessed, the 
industry’s operating environment has also taken 
a more challenging turn over time. Increased 
Tourist arrivals has been greeted with an over-
supply of accommodation venues belonging to 
both graded and ungraded categories, which 
has compelled even deep-rooted star-graded 
players to rethink and re-strategise their value 
propositions.

Operating in such an environment, the 
management of Pegasus Hotels of ceylon 
Plc is continually engaged in  evaluation and 
execution of numerous initiatives to uplift the 
standards of the group hotels. 
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       Pegasus Hotels of 

Ceylon PLC, the Company, 

recorded a healthy 22.4% 

Year-on-Year increase in 

Gross Profit, reaching  

Rs. 196.2 Mn for the year 

under review.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

In line with this requirement, the banquet expansion and 
renovation project completed at  the Pegasus Reef Hotel 
during the year ended 31st march 2014 proved to be 
a resounding success as relected in the inancial results, 
where consolidated banquet revenue has increased 
substantially by 45.7% year-on-year. 

The sea food restaurant currently under construction at 
Pegasus Reef Hotel is another such initiative. The restaurant, 
which is scheduled to be completed during the second 
quarter   of the upcoming inancial year has been designed 
to accommodate 60 pax at a single sitting and also 
includes a 30 feat long bar. yet to be named, the restaurant 
is tastefully designed to portray a chic-appearance yet 
giving a beach restaurant open-air feel. Once operational, 
we are conident that it will serve our guests with a unique 
dining experience whilst contributing positively to overall 
revenue.

buoyed by strong f&b (food & beverage) income and 
improved occupancy, Pegasus Reef Hotel, the company, 
recorded a healthy 22.4% year-on-year increase in gross 
Proit, at Rs. 196.2 mn for the year under review. Average 
occupancy of the hotel stood at 47% for the twelve months 
ended 31st march 2015 against 44% reported for the 
preceding inancial year. The company registered an 
overall proit of Rs. 98.7 mn for the 14/15 inancial 
year, an increase of 40.1% compared to the Rs. 70.5 mn 
recorded last year. 

At group level, Pegasus Hotels of ceylon Plc concluded the 
reviewing inancial year with consolidated Revenue of  
Rs. 510.3 mn and consolidated Operating Proit of  
Rs. 92.4 mn, relecting year-on-year increases of 12.8% 
and 36.0% respectively.

Having taken into consideration the ongoing and future 
capital expenditure commitments of the group to be 
competitive in the industry, the directors recommend a 
conservative irst and inal dividend of Rs. 0.50 per share 
for the year ended 31st march 2015 subject to shareholder 
approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the 
company.

considering the encouraging developments which have 
taken place in the country’s leisure sector in recent times, 
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the journey of Tourism in sri lanka going forward 
appears to be tremendously promising from today’s 
standpoint. Whist we value the efforts taken by the 
authorities to place our island nation on the global map 
as a much sought after destination, we believe there 
is still a substantial level of ground work remaining to 
be done in order to realize the full potential of what 
sri lanka has on offer. for instance, there is immense 
scope to develop Tourism infrastructure in the country 
and generate outlets to harness tourist expenditure 
which would enable higher earnings from tourism and 
longer tourist stays (occupancies). As such, with the 
right strategies and the attitude in place, we believe  
sri lanka has got what it takes to reach greater heights 
in time to come.

before I conclude, I would like to extend my sincere 
gratitude to our former director mr. Paddy Withana, 
who bid farewell to us this year in order to shoulder 
a greater responsibility as chairman of the sri lanka 
Tourism Development Authority. mr. Withana is a 
veteran hotelier, with strong work ethics. We value and 
appreciate the service he rendered during his tenure 
with us, which has undoubtedly contributed to the 
success of our business. We wish him success in all his 
future endeavours. 

I would also like to take this opportunity to welcome 
mr. mahendra Dayananda and mr. Asoka 
gunasekera as directors to the board of Pegasus 
Hotels of ceylon Plc. last, but not least, I wish to 
thank our shareholders, my colleagues on the board, 
the members of the Audit committee, Remuneration 
committee, nomination committee and the respective 
staff members of the two hotels for ensuring that 
our business remains proitable in the face of many 
challenges. 

(sgd.) 
D. C. R. Gunawardena 
chairman 

colombo 

12th may 2015
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THe fuTuRe lOOKs  
PROmIsIng cOmPeTITIOn 
InTense...
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MANAGEMENT 
DISCUSSION & 
ANALYSIS
considering the encouraging trends which 

have taken shape in recent times, the journey 

of Tourism in sri lanka going forward, appears 

to be tremendously promising from today’s 

standpoint.
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MANAGEMENT 
DISCUSSION & 
ANALYSIS
Macro Overview

Despite the slump in crude Oil prices, the global economy 

showed little signs of improvement during the year 2014, 

accentuated by the slowdown in china and sluggish 

conditions witnessed in Japan and the european Region. 

Accordingly, global real gDP growth remained at 3.4% for 

the third consecutive year as revealed by the ‘Imf world 

economic outlook data’ published in April 2015.

In spite of meagre global economic performance during the 

year, the international tourism market remain undeterred 

demonstrating resilience yet again, marking Tourist Arrivals 

of 1.1 bn and receipts from International Tourism grossing 

usD 1.2 bn for the year 2014 as per  the ‘unWTO World 

Tourism barometer’ data. This relect year-on-year increases  

of 4.7% and 3.7% respectively. even though china 

experienced an economic deceleration during the calendar 

year concluded, it continued to contribute strongly to global 

tourism via its rapidly expanding outbound tourism market.

sri lanka too beneited from this as arrivals from east Asia 

marked the highest growth in terms of arrivals in 2014, 

led by china. Accordingly, keeping pace with the post-war 

tourist arrivals growth the country has experienced, sri 

lanka recorded Tourist arrivals of 1.5 mn visitors in 2014, 

depicting an increase of 19.8% compared to the igure 

registered in 2013. During the year, europe maintained its 

position as our key market although arrivals from ukraine 

declined slightly as a result of political uncertainty.

       The planned sea food 

restaurant at the Pegasus 

Reef Hotel is expected to 

commence operations in mid 

2015. The restaurant will 

feature an exclusive array 

of dishes and an ambiance 

to match, catering to both 

foreigners and locals alike 

who share a  palate for sea 

food

Operating Profit

92mn
The increase in Operating Proit for 
the year over that of inancial year 
13/14 was 36%

Operating Profit 
Margin

18.1%

Against an Operating Proit 
margin of 15% reported 
during inancial year 13/14
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Operational Review

The average occupancy at Pegasus Reef Hotel for the year 

under review stood at 47%, improving marginally against 

the 44% recorded in inancial year 2013/14. In contrast, 

average occupancy at giritale Hotel relected a 2% year-

on-year decline, from 59% reported for the twelve months 

ended 31st march 2014 to 57% in the reviewing year. 

Amidst intense competition stemming from the proliferation 

of both graded and ungraded accommodation venues, 

improving occupancy levels has been a challenge faced by 

both our hotels in the recent past. To address the situation 

at hand, we have taken several initiatives during the year 

to improve overall guest experience with the hope of 

increasing their duration of stay. 

One such initiative is the sea food restaurant under 

construction at the Pegasus Reef hotel, which is expected 

to open during mid-2015. The restaurant will feature an 

exclusive array of dishes and will cater to both foreigners 

and locals alike, who share a palate for sea food. Once 

operational, we believe the restaurant will contribute 

towards enhancing the overall dining experience at the 

hotel, leading to greater f&b Revenue potential. Once the 

restaurant is in town, no longer would an avid sea-food 

hunter from the locality be compelled to take the hassle of 

traveling long distance to satiate their taste buds.

In addition, efforts are also underway to enhance 

branding and positioning of the two hotels, particularly 

by strengthening ties with international tour operators. 

Apart from increasing guest occupancy we are also keen 

to explore other avenues in potential revenue generating 

segments such as mIce travel, which is an area which we 

hope to capitalise on in time to come given the enormous 

scope the segment has , with the onset of growing 

economic  activities in the country.
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In anticipation of this, we have already renovated the 

banquet reception hall at Pegasus Reef Hotel, which has 

generated successful returns since becoming operational. 

This has also enabled us to strengthen our banquet income, 

mainly via wedding receptions, which is a major cultural 

event in sri lanka.

Financial Review

for the year ended 31st march 2015 the company 

reported a Revenue of Rs. 425.5 mn, which is an increase 

of 14.8% compared to the inancial year 2013/14. The 

increase was primarily driven by higher f&b Revenue, 

stemming from growth in banquet income. The increase 

in banquet income during the year, boosted f&b Revenue 

of the company to Rs. 204.7 mn for the year ended 

31st march 2015, from Rs. 151.5 mn recorded in the 

comparable period.

In spite of the increase in average occupancy, room 

revenue reported by Pegasus Reef Hotel, for the year ended 

31st march 2015 declined by 1.1% year-on-year, to  

Rs. 205.8 mn largely due to the competitive nature of room 

rates maintained during the period. 

The company concluded the inancial year with a net Proit 

of Rs. 98.7 mn, up 40.1% against that of inancial year 

2013/14, driven by strong revenue growth. 

On the back of higher f&b income, resulting from strong 

banquet revenue as explained above, the group reported 

year-on-year topline growth of 12.8% for the 2014/15 

inancial year.

consolidated operating proit margin for the reviewing 

period was at 18.1%, on a revenue base of Rs. 510.3 mn 

whilst the same for inancial year 2013/14 was 15.0% on 

a revenue base of Rs. 452.2 mn. Pegasus Hotels of ceylon 

Plc registered an overall net proit of Rs. 95.9 mn for the 

twelve months concluded against the Rs. 66.6 mn recorded 

for the preceding inancial year, depicting a year-on-year 

increase of 44.0%.

borrowings obtained by the Pegasus Reef Hotel under 

the “Tsunami funding scheme” in march 2008 was 

settled in full during the year under review leading to zero 

consolidated loans & borrowings outstanding as at 31st 

march 2015 against a total sum of borrowings amounting 

to Rs. 16.4 mn as at the balance sheet date of inancial 

year 2013/14. 

fuelled by higher operating cash inlow for the period 

under review, the consolidated cash & cash equivalents 

balance as at 31st march 2015 was at  Rs. 135.0 mn, 

which is an increase of 84.8% compared to that of 31st 

march 2014. going forward, we hope to reinvest these 

funds in capital expenditure, given the upgrading and 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
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renovations required to be carried out in the two hotels, in 

order to be in par with the ever evolving industry standards. 

This would enable the group to maintain balance sheet 

strength whilst maintaining gearing at reasonable level if 

required.

Outlook

considering the recent trends which have taken shape in 

the tourism industry, the outlook for travel and leisure in sri 

lanka seems to be on an optimistic footing as of present. 

Thus, we are excited about the enhanced prospects this 

brings to our business and will be seeking to maximize 

gains from the opportunities presented. However we 

envisage room rates and occupancies of the Pegasus Reef 

Hotel to come under pressure going forward, as a result of 

rising competition from tourist establishments in the vicinity, 

mainly in the form of lower room rates. The development 

of the colombo - Katunayake highway too will have a 

considerable impact on the Hotel, as it will facilitate a 

direct drive to colombo and beyond, resulting in the 

diminishing need for a transit venue. 

Carsons Management Services (Private) Limited

Managers

12th May 2015

Read this report online at  
http://www.carsoncumberbatch.
com/investor_information/
annual_reports_2014_2015
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sTROng leADeRsHIP 
AnD A cleAR sTRATegy...

Business
THE

OF Pleasure 
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THE 
BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS
The strength of our leadership has 

always been a core factor in our 

record of business success
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PROFILES OF
DIRECTORS

CHANDIMA GUNAWARDENA

chandima gunawardena serves as a non-Independent, 
non-executive Director of carson cumberbatch Plc and 
in most of the carsons group companies in sri lanka 
and overseas. He is also a Director of bukit Darah Plc. 
since assuming non-executive status in the group, he 
serves as an advisor to the group’s strategic Planning and 
management forums in sri lanka and serves on board 
committees including the Audit committees of the group in 
sri lanka and overseas covering all operating sectors of the 
group.

mr. gunawardena has over four decades of experience 
in varied ields of business and commercial activities and 
has held senior positions in corporate, mercantile and 
state Institutions. He was appointed to the carsons group 
Directorate in 1990.

He has served in the management committee of The 
ceylon chamber of commerce for over 10 years and was 
a founder council member of the sri lanka Institute of 
Directors (slID) and continued to serve in the council for 
over 10 years.

He is a fellow of the chartered Institute of management 
Accountants, uK.

HARI SELVANATHAN

Hari selvanathan is the chairman of bukit Darah 
Plc, Deputy chairman of carson cumberbatch Plc 
and goodhope Asia Holdings ltd. He is the President 
commissioner of the palm oil related companies in 
Indonesia. He holds Directorships in several subsidiary 
companies within the carsons group and is also a Director 
of sri Krishna corporation (Private) limited and the 
chairman of express newspapers (ceylon) ltd. He is also 
the chairman of carsons management services (Private) 
limited and Agro Harapan lestari (Private) limited, the 
group’s management companies. Past President of the 
national chamber of commerce and Past vice chairman 
of the International chamber of commerce (sri lanka). 

He counts over 20 years experience in commodity trading 
in International markets. 

He holds a bachelor of commerce Degree.

MANO SELVANATHAN

mano selvanathan holds a bachelors Degree in commerce 
and is the chairman of sri Krishna corporation (Private) 
limited, ceylon finance & securities (Private) ltd. and 
selinsing Plc and is a group Director of most companies 
in the carson cumberbatch group in sri lanka, Indonesia, 
malaysia, singapore & India and is an active member of 
its executive management forums. He is also the Deputy 
chairman of ceybank Asset management ltd. 

He has served as the chairman of the ceylon chamber 
of commerce and The Indo lanka chamber of commerce 
& Industry and also as the President of the Rotary club of 
colombo north. At present he is the Honorary consul of 
the Republic of chile in sri lanka.

mano selvanathan was conferred the highest national 
Honours in sri lanka the ‘DesAmAnyA’ title by H.e. 
The President of sri lanka, in recognition of the services 
rendered to the nation in november 2005.

In January 2011 he was awarded with the prestigious 
‘PRAvAsI bHARATIyA sAmmAn AWARD’ by the President 
of India. 
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He also received the Presidential Honour of ‘ORDeR Of 
KnIgHT cOmmAnDeR’ in October 2013 awarded by the 
government of chile.

SEGA NAGENDRA

sega nagendra is a Director of equity One Plc. He is a 
former senior Director of carson cumberbatch Plc and 
several of its subsidiaries and Associate companies.

senior Director & financial consultant of cml - mTD 
construction ltd., executive chairman Travelserv ltd., 
Travelon ltd and Travelon management services ltd. He 
is also chairman and Director of several public listed and 
private companies.

Past President of skal International colombo (International 
Association of Travel and Tourism Professionals), Past 
secretary of the skal International, Asian Area Region and 
Past President of the Paciic Asia Travel Association (sri 
lanka chapter). Immediate Past President of the sri lanka 
Pakistan business council and present council member. 
Also Past President of the sri lanka - benelux business 
council and Past President of the chartered management 
Institute- uK, sri lanka branch. served as an executive 
committee member of The ceylon chamber of commerce 
and former chairman of the Imports section of The ceylon 
chamber of commerce.

former committee member on Transport, Highways and 
Aviation of the monitoring & Progress Division of the 
ministry of Policy Developing and Implementation.

companion of the chartered management Institute - u.K., 
master of business Administration u.K. and fellow of the 
Institute of certiied Professional managers - sri lanka.”

MAHENDRA DAYANANDA
(Appointed w.e.f. 15th July 2014) 

mahendra Dayananda is an Independent non-executive 
Director of nestle lanka Plc and was a former non – 
executive Director of Delmege ltd. An expert on economic 
issues, he was until recently the chairman of the sri lanka 
business Development centre. 

former chairman of the ceylon chamber of commerce, 
he chaired the monetary Policy consultative committee – 
central bank of sri lanka and continues to chair several 
organisations such as Total Tea concepts (Private) limited 
and Indo Asia Teas (Private) limited. He is the Resident 
Representative of gover Horowitz & blunt ltd, united 
Kingdom and is also the Honorary consul for the Republic 
of benin in sri lanka. 

ASOKA DE. Z. GUNASEKERA
(Appointed w.e.f. 19th November 2014) 

Asoka gunasekera is a Director of guardian capital 
Partners Plc. He also serves as Alternate Director to  
mr. I.W senanayake (chairman) of IWs Holdings (Pvt) 
ltd and in most IWs Holdings group companies. Past 
chairman of the national chamber of commerce of sri 
lanka and Past President of the ceylon national chamber 
of Industries. 

He is a Past International Director and a board Appointee 
of lions clubs International and was also a member of 
the national Police commission of sri lanka. He served 
as legal Advisor and secretary to the ministry of Posts 
and Telecommunications; co-ordinating secretary to the 
ministry of Power and energy and ministry of Highways 
and was the Acting secretary to the ministry of Policy 
Planning.

He is an Attorney - at - law & notary Public.
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PUSHPAKUMARA M. WITHANA

(Resigned w.e.f. 31st January 2015)

Pushpakumara Withana was a Director of equity Hotels 
limited.

chairman of the sri lanka Tourism Development Authority.
He was a former Director food & beverage, Keells Hotels 
sri lanka and maldives. He was also a former Director/ 
general manager of Keells Hotels. A past chairman of the 
Hotel & catering International management Association 
u.K. sri lanka chapter. 

He is also a fellow and Past President of the ceylon Hotel 
school graduates Association. mr. Withana is a Past 
District governor of the International Association of lions 
clubs, District 306 A1.

NALAKE FERNANDO (ALTERNATE DIRECTOR TO  
M. SELVANATHAN) 

nalake fernando is a Director of the Property management 
companies of the carson cumberbatch group - equity One 
Plc and equity Two Plc. He is also a Director of carsons 
management services (Private) limited and in some of 
the boards of the malaysian Plantation companies of the 
carsons group. He was the country representative for  
sri lanka with Dalekeller & Associates ltd., Designers and 
skidmore Ownings & merrill Architects. He was also a 
Director of sKc management services ltd.

He counts over 40 years of work experience and holds 
a Technician’s certiicate of the Institute of Work study 
Practitioners of uK.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANY - EQUITY HOTELS LIMITED

CHANDIMA GUNAWARDENA
(Refer under Company profile) 

PUSHPAKUMARA M. WITHANA
(Resigned w.e.f. 31st January 2015, Refer under Company 
profile) 

AJITH WEERATUNGE 
(Appointed w.e.f. 31st January 2015) 

Ajith Weeratunge is a Director of the carson cumberbatch 
group’s management company, carsons management 
services (Private) limited and holds the position of Head of 
finance. He is also a Director of equity One Plc and equity 
Two Plc, as well as the group’s Investment Holding sector - 
ceylon Investment Plc, Rubber Investment Trust limited 
and guardian fund management limited. He accounts for 
more than 34 years of inance related experience in the 
mercantile sector and has held positions in lanka Walltile 
ltd., union Apparels (Pvt) ltd., John Keells Holdings Plc, 
Phoenix Industries (Pvt) ltd and ceylon beverage Holdings 
Plc. 

He is a fellow member of the chartered Institute of 
management Accountants of uK.

PROFILES OF DIRECTORS
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VIBATH WIJESINGHE

vibath Wijesinghe is the group financial controller 
of carsons management services (Private) limited the 
management support service provider to the carson 
cumberbatch group on sri lankan business operations. 

vibath began his career at m/s. KPmg, sri lanka and 
has over 15 years of experience in the ields of inance, 
corporate inance and auditing and has spearheaded 
assignments on business restructuring, business 
acquisition and investment transactions. He joined carson 
cumberbatch group in 2004.

He is an Associate member of the Institute of chartered 
Accountants of sri lanka, chartered Institute of 
management Accountants (uK) and of the society of 
certiied management Accountants of sri lanka. He also 
holds a masters Degree in business Administration from 
Postgraduate Institute of management - university of  
sri Jayewardenepura, sri lanka.

Read this report online at  
http://www.carsoncumberbatch.
com/investor_information/
annual_reports_2014_2015
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encountering risk is inherent in any business. but an effective system of internal controls and risk management will ensure 

achievement of business objectives. group-wide risk management practices provide reasonable assurance through the 

process of identiication and management of events, situations or circumstances which even if they occur would not 

adversely impact the achievement of objectives of the business. Risk management mechanism identiies and measures 

key risks that the business is confronted with, and to take a proactive role in the decision making process, whereby 

opportunities are exploited to deliver shareholder value and threats are dealt with appropriately. Risks are managed until 

they are mitigated and re-assessed to be within company’s risk appetite.

In implementing the business plan, the company has embodied enterprise risk management to its business activities.  

The risk management process supports;

•	 Corporate	Governance

•	 Quality	of	business	planning

•	 Audit	planning

•	 Project	planning	and	implementation

•	 Building	conidence	of	various	stakeholder	groups

Risk management re-validates that the relevant internal control systems are in place and provides assurance to 

management/board of Directors that processes are robust and working effectively.

Risk management governance structure includes a reporting framework within the organisation and to the board of 

Directors, thereby allowing Directors to assume their supervisory function for better corporate governance. 

RISK MANAGEMENT
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board of Directors

management Team

Audit committee

Risk owners

•	 Responsible	for	approval of eRm framework 
•	 Set	risk	appetite	thresholds
•	 Approve	Business	Plans
•	 Review	Reports	-	Risk	Dash	Board	and	summary	

of risk register

•	 Deine	and	set	risk	appetite	and	consider	new	
and emerging risks

•	 Develop	/	monitor	suitable	action	plans	to	
mitigate/manage risks

•	 Consider	actions	to	improve	risk	management	
processes

•	 Provide	representation	on	compliances

•	 Consider	adequacy	of	risk	management	and	
internal control framework

•	 Receive	and	review	risk	management	reports/
Dash board/Risk Register

•	 Receive	and	review	reports	from	internal	and	
external auditors

•	 Responsible	for	day	to	day	monitoring	/	
supervision of risk and risk mitigation actions.

•	 Required	to	evaluate	status	of	risk	and	
effectiveness of risk mitigation action plans
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We are of the view that Risk management is one of the driving factors of sustainability of operations and have identiied 

the following risk proiles. The principal risks thus identiied are considered and reviewed at various stages within our 

business process continuously.

Risk Impact Risk rating Risk response & strategies

market risk not being able to achieve business 

objectives.

low The group manages this risk by means of the 

following actions and procedures.

•	 Maintains	and	builds	relationship	with	tour	

operators.

•	 Participation	in	relevant	trade	and	business	

promotions, locally and internationally.

•	 Maintaining	value	and	standard	of	the	hotel	

through regular refurbishments and training 

and development of employees.

•	 Develops	and	monitors	comprehensive	business	

plans.

•	 Diversiication	of	revenue	base.

liquidity Risk Inability to raise funds or effect 

payments when required.

moderate The group’s approach to managing liquidity is to 

ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have 

suficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, 

under both normal and stressed conditions, without 

incurring unacceptable losses or damage to the 

group’s reputation.

The group monitors the level of expected cash 

inlows on trade and other receivables together 

with expected cash outlows on trade and other 

payables. This excludes the potential impact of 

extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be 

predicted, such as natural disasters. In addition, 

the group has access to short-term inancing 

facilities extended from the parent company 

carson cumberbatch Plc.

RISK MANAGEMENT
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Risk Impact Risk rating Risk response & strategies

credit Risk The credit risk of the group is mainly 

derived from the dues receivable from 

its customers. The group’s objective 

is to seek continual revenue growth 

while minimising losses incurred due 

to increased credit risk exposure.

low The hotel sector implements the following controls 

to mitigate this risk.

•	 Continuous	and	regular	evaluation	of	

creditworthiness of tour operators and other 

customers.

•	 Ongoing	monitoring	and	follow	up	of	

receivable balances.

foreign 

exchange Risk

foreign currency risk is the risk that 

the fair value or future value of a 

inancial instrument will luctuate 

due to changes in foreign exchange 

rates. Across the industry, hotel rates 

targeting foreign tourists, are quoted 

in us Dollar terms and contracted 

in advance with tour operators. This 

constitutes a signiicant volume of 

business to the group.

low The group monitors luctuations in exchange rates 

and takes precautionary measures to revise its fee 

quotes on a regular basis, in an attempt to mitigate 

the exposure to currency risk.

Interest Rate 

Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk arising due 

to the volatility of the interest rates in 

the markets affecting the future cash 

lows.

low The long-term bank borrowing of the company has 

been obtained at a ixed concessionary interest 

rate, hence interest rate risk is not applicable.

However, other bank borrowings and amounts 

borrowed from related companies are exposed 

to interest rate risk. The inancial strength of the 

parent company, carson cumberbatch Plc is used 

via the group treasury in negotiating the rates with 

external inanciers.

(Refer the note 32”Risk management” in the 

inancial statement for further details.)
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Risk Impact Risk rating Risk response & strategies

systems and 

process risks

The risk of direct or indirect losses 

due to inadequate or failed internal 

processes and systems.

low •	Maintains	detailed	procedure	manuals	and	

provides training and guidelines for new 

recruits.

•	The	internal	audit	function	of	the	Group	carry	

out regular reviews on internal control systems 

and processes and recommends process 

improvements, if short comings are noted.

Human 

Resource Risk

Attracting, developing and retaining 

talented employees are essential 

to deliver the group’s objectives. 

failure to determine the appropriate 

mix of skills required to implement 

group strategies and failure to 

retain or develop the right number 

of appropriately qualiied staff could 

affect the achievement of the group’s 

objectives.

low The following initiatives have been implemented by 

the group

•	Ensure	recruitments	are	carried	out	to	hire	

employees with required qualiication, 

knowledge and experience.

•	Availability	of	detailed	job	descriptions	and	

role proiles for each job.

•	HR	policies	are	focused	on	encouraging	

continuous training and development and 

ensuring appropriate compensation as per 

market rates to retain and develop employees.

RISK MANAGEMENT
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Risk Impact Risk rating Risk response & strategies

legal & 

Regulatory 

compliance 

Risk

failure to comply with regulatory and 

legal framework applicable to the 

group.

low The management together with the carsons group 

legal division protectively identiies and sets up 

appropriate systems and processes for legal 

regulatory compliance with respect to the group’s 

operations.

•	Arrange	training	programmes	and	circulate	

updates for key employees on new / revised laws 

and regulations on needs basis.

•	Provide	comments	on	draft	laws	to	government	

and regulatory authorities.

•	Obtain	comments	and	interpretation	from	

external legal consultants on areas that require 

clarity.

•	Obtain	compliance	certiicates	from	management	

on quarterly basis on compliance with relevant 

laws and regulations.

Risks arising from unforeseen events such as natural disasters are covered by obtaining appropriate and comprehensive 

insurance covers.
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The board of Directors of Pegasus Hotels of ceylon Plc have pleasure in presenting to the shareholders their Report 

together with the Audited financial statements for the year ended 31st march 2015. 

The details set out herein provide the pertinent information required by the companies Act no. 7 of 2007, listing 

Rules of the colombo stock exchange and are guided by recommended best Accounting Practices. 

The Annual Report was approved by the board of Directors on 12th may 2015.

1. GENERAL

Pegasus Hotels of ceylon Plc (the “company”) is a public quoted company with limited liability incorporated in  

sri lanka in 1966.

2. PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS SUBSIDIARY

The principal activities of the company and its subsidiary are to engage in hoteliering and leisure related activities. 

There were no signiicant changes in the nature of the principal activities of the company and its subsidiary during 

the inancial year under review. 

3. REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

The chairman’s statement and the management Discussion & Analysis describe in detail the performance of the 

company and the group and its future developments. 

These reports together with the audited consolidated inancial statements relect the state of affairs of the company 

and the group. 

4. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated inancial statements which comprise the consolidated statement of  Proit or loss and Other 

comprehensive Income, statement of financial Position, cash flow statement, statement of changes in equity and 

notes to the financial statements of the company and the group for the year ended 31st march 2015 are set out 

on pages 50 to 88. These inancial statements do comply with the requirements of the companies Act, no. 7 of 

2007.

4.1 Revenue

The company and the group generated revenue of Rs. 425.5mn and Rs. 510.3mn (2014 – Rs. 370.7mn and  

Rs. 452.2mn). A detailed analysis of the revenue for the period is given in note 11 to the inancial statements. 

ANNUAL REPORT 
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
ON THE AFFAIRS OF THE COMPANY
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4.2 Financial results and appropriations

An abridgement of the inancial performance of the company and the group is presented in the table below.

(In Rupees thousands) Group Company

For the year ended 31st March 2015 2014 2015 2014

Proit for the year 95,868 66,556 98,732 70,468

Other comprehensive expense for the year (1,075) (1,175) (705) (630)

Total comprehensive income for the year 94,793 65,381 98,027 69,838

Retained earnings as at the beginning of the year 202,379 152,194 169,013 114,371

Retained earnings before appropriations 297,172 217,575 267,040 184,209

Dividend paid (15,196) (15,196) (15,196) (15,196)

Retained earnings as at the end of the year 281,976 202,379 251,844 169,013

4.3 Signiicant accounting policies

The signiicant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these inancial statements are given on pages 54 

to 67.

4.4 Property, Plant and equipment 

Details of property, plant and equipment are given in note 17 to the inancial statements.

4.4.1 Market value of freehold properties 

The company and the group has recognized the carrying value of its land and building in the statements of 

financial Position at revalued amounts in accordance with sri lanka Accounting standard (lKAs 16) – ‘Property, 

Plant and equipment’.

During the inancial year ended 31st march 2012, a revaluation gain was recognized on freehold land to the value 

of Rs. 111.5mn, based on a professional valuation performed by mr. K. Arthur Perera, A.m.I.v. (sri lanka), an 

Independent Professional valuer. 

4.5 Capital Expenditure 

The details of capital expenditure of the company and the group are as follows.

(In Rupees thousands) Group Company

For the year ended 31st March 2015 2014 2015 2014

Property, Plant & equipment 26,206 61,475 24,717 60,092
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4.6 Reserves 

As at 31st march 2015, the group’s total reserves stood at Rs. 957.3mn (2014 – Rs. 877.7mn) comprising capital 

reserves of Rs. 675.1mn (2014 – 675.1mn) and revenue reserves of Rs. 282.2mn ( 2014 – 202.6mn).

The total reserves of the company as at 31st march 2015 stood at Rs. 927.1mn (2014 – 844.3mn) comprising 

capital Reserves of Rs. 675.1mn (2014 – Rs. 675.1mn) and Revenue Reserves of Rs. 252mn (2014 – Rs. 169.2mn). 

Details are shown in the statement of changes in equity on page 52.

5. STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITIES

The responsibilities of the Directors in relation to the inancial statements, are detailed in the following paragraphs, 

whilst the responsibilities of the Auditors are set out in the Report of the Auditors.

According to the companies Act no. 7 of 2007 and the sri lanka Accounting and Auditing standards Act no. 15 

of 1995, the Directors are required to prepare inancial statements for each inancial year, giving a true and fair 

view of the state of affairs of the company and the group as at the end of the inancial year and of the results for 

the said period.

The inancial statements comprise of inter alia:

•	 a	Statement	of	inancial	position,	which	presents	a	true	and	fair	view	of	the	state	of	affairs	of	the	Company	and	

the group as at end of the inancial year. 

•	 a	Consolidated	Statement	of		Proit	or	Loss	and	Other	Comprehensive	Income,	which	presents	a	true	and	fair	

view of the inancial performance of the company and the group for the inancial year. 

In preparing these inancial statements the Directors are required to ensure that:

- appropriate accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently, while material departures, if any, 

have been disclosed and explained.

- all applicable Accounting standards have been complied with 

- reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates have been made and 

- provides the information required by and otherwise comply with the listing Rules of the colombo stock 

exchange. 

ANNUAL REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
ON THE AFFAIRS OF THE COMPANY
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The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the company and the group maintains suficient accounting records 

to disclose with reasonable accuracy, the inancial position of the company in order to ensure that its inancial 

statements meet with the requirements of companies Act no. 7 of 2007 and the sri lanka Accounting and Auditing 

standards Act no. 15 of 1995. 

They are also responsible for taking reasonable measures to safeguard the assets of the company and the group in 

this regard to give proper consideration to the establishment of appropriate systems of internal control with a view 

to prevent, detect and rectify frauds and other irregularities.

These inancial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, since the Directors are of the view that 

the company has adequate resources to continue operations for the foreseeable future from the date of signing 

these inancial statements.

The Directors are also of the view that they have discharged their responsibilities as set out in this statement.

6. INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Independent Auditors’ Report on the inancial statements is given on page 49 of this Report.

7. INTERESTS REGISTER

The company maintains the Interests Register conforming to the provisions of the companies Act no. 7 of 2007.

All Directors have made declarations as provided for in section 192(2) of the companies Act aforesaid. The 

relevant details as required by the companies Act no. 7 of 2007 have been entered in the Interests Register during 

the year under review.

The Interests Register is available for inspection as required under the companies Act.

7.1 Remuneration of Directors

Directors’ remuneration, for the inancial year ended 31st march 2015 is given in note 13 to the inancial 

statements, on page 68. 

7.2 Directors’ interest in contracts and shares 

The Related Party Transactions of the company as required by the sri lanka Accounting standard lKAs 24 “Related 

Party Disclosures” are disclosed in note 33 to the inancial statements and have been declared at meetings of the 

board of Directors. The Directors have had no direct or indirect interest in any other contracts or proposed contracts 

in relation to the business of the company other than those disclosed in note 33.
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The following Directors of the company did not have any interests in ordinary shares of the company as at  

1st April 2014 or as at 31st march 2015. 

1. mr. D.c.R. gunawardena 

2. mr. H. selvanathan 

3. mr. m. selvanathan 

4. mr. s. nagendra

5. mr. m. Dayananda (Appointed w.e.f. 15th July 2014)

6. mr. W.A.A. De Z. gunasekera (Appointed w.e.f. 19th november 2014)

7. mr. P.m. Withana ( Resigned w.e.f. 31st January 2015)

8. DIRECTORS

 The names of the Directors who served during the year are given under corporate Information provided in the inner 

back cover of the Annual Report.

8.1 Appointment of Directors

1. mr. m. Dayananda was appointed as a non-executive/ Independent Director to the board w.e.f. 15th July 

2014.

2. mr. W.A.A. De Z. gunasekera was appointed as a non-executive/ Independent Director from the conclusion of 

the extraordinary general meeting of 19th november 2014 for a period of one year, where it was resolved that 

the age limit stipulated in section 210 of the companies Act no. 7 of 2007 shall not be applicable to  

mr. W.A.A. De Z. gunasekera. 

8.2 Director to retire by rotation

In terms of Articles 72, 73 and 74 of the Articles of Association of the company, mr. D.c.R. gunawardena retires 

by rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-election.

8.3 Retirement at the irst Annual General Meeting following the appointment as Directors

In terms of Article 68 of the Articles of Association of the company, mr. m. Dayananda and mr. W.A.A. De Z. 

gunasekera retire from the board and being eligible offer themselves for re-election. 

ANNUAL REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
ON THE AFFAIRS OF THE COMPANY
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8.4 Appointment of Directors who are over 70 years of age 

upon the recommendation of the nomination committee of the company and the board, it is recommended that 

messrs. s. nagendra and W.A.A. De Z. gunasekera who are over 70 years of age be re-appointed as Directors of 

the company for a further period of one year from the conclusion of the Annual general meeting and that the age 

limit stipulated in section 210 of the companies Act no. 7 of 2007 shall not be applicable.

8.5  Resignation

mr. P. m. Withana, executive Director resigned from the board w.e.f. 31st January 2015.

9. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The board has ensured that the company has complied with the corporate governance Rules as per the listing 

Rules of the colombo stock exchange (cse).

9.1 Board of Directors

The following Directors held ofice as at the reporting date and their brief proiles are given on pages 18 to 21 of 

the Annual Report.

Directors executive/ non-executive/ Independent

mr. D.c.R. gunawardena (chairman) non-executive

mr. H. selvanathan executive

mr. m. selvanathan executive

mr. s. nagendra non-executive/ Independent*

mr. m. Dayananda – Appointed w.e.f. 15th July 2014 non-executive/ Independent

mr. W.A.A. De Z. gunasekera – Appointed w.e.f. 19th november 2014 non-executive/ Independent

mr. P. m. Withana – Resigned w.e.f. 31st January 2015 executive 

mr. K.c.n. fernando (Alternate Director to mr. m. selvanathan) executive

each of the non-executive Directors of the company has submitted a signed declaration on Independence/ 

non-Independence as per Rule 7.10.2(b) of the listing Rules of the colombo stock exchange (cse). The said 

declarations were tabled at a board meeting of the board of Directors of the company held on 12th may 2015, 

in order to enable the board of Directors to determine the Independence/ non-Independence of each of the non-

executive Directors, in terms of Rule 7.10.3(a) of the listing Rules of the cse.

* The board has determined that mr. s. nagendra is an Independent/ non-executive Director in spite of being on 

the board for more than nine years, since he is not directly involved in the management of the company.
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9.2 Remuneration Committee

As per the Rule 7.10.5 of the listing Rules of the colombo stock exchange, the Remuneration committee of carson 

cumberbatch Plc (ccPlc), the Parent company, functions as the Remuneration committee of the company and 

comprises of the following members. 

Remuneration committee members executive / non-executive/ Independent

mr. I. Paulraj (chairman) non-executive Director of ccPlc

mr. D.c.R. gunawardena non-executive Director of ccPlc

mr. R.Theagarajah non-executive/ Independent Director of ccPlc

ccPlc is in the process of re-formulating the Remuneration committee to fall in line with the requirements set out in 

the listing Rules of the colombo stock exchange. 

Scope and Objective

The primary objective of the Remuneration committee is to lead to establish a formal and transparent procedure for 

the development of a remuneration policy and the establishment of a remuneration structure.

A remuneration policy has been formulated based on market and industry factors and individual performance for all 

group companies.

Functions and Proceedings

The Remuneration committee recommends to the board the remuneration to be paid to the chief executive Oficer, 

executive Directors and non-executive Directors. based on the recommendation of the Remuneration committee, the 

board approves remuneration to the respective Directors.

The chief executive Oficer, Director-in-charge and other members of senior management may be invited to attend 

meetings to discuss the performance of the executive Directors and make proposals as necessary. neither executive 

nor non-executive Directors are involved in Remuneration committee meetings when determinations are made in 

relation to the remuneration of the respective Directors.

The committee is authorised by the board to seek appropriate professional advice internally and externally as and 

when it considers this necessary.

ANNUAL REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
ON THE AFFAIRS OF THE COMPANY
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The Remuneration committee meets at least twice a year. During the period under review, the committee had two 

meetings. 

Remuneration committee Attended/ eligible to Attend

mr. I. Paulraj (chairman) 2/2

mr. D.c.R. gunawardena 2/2

mr. R.Theagarajah 1/2

Reporting and Responsibilities

The committee chairman reports formally to the board on its proceedings on all matters within its duties and 

responsibilities. The committee makes recommendations to the board as deemed appropriate on any area within its 

limit where action or improvements are needed.

Aggregated remuneration paid to the Directors of the company is disclosed in note 13 on page 68 of the Annual 

Report. 

9.3 Audit Committee

As per the Rule 7.10.6 of the listing Rules of the colombo stock exchange the Audit committee of carson 

cumberbatch Plc (ccPlc), the Parent company functions as the Audit committee of the company and comprises 

of the following members.

Audit committee members executive / non-executive/ Independent

mr. v. P. malalasekera (chairman) non-executive/ Independent Director of ccPlc

mr. f. mohideen non-executive/ Independent Director of ccPlc

mr. D. c. R. gunawardena non-executive Director of ccPlc

The Audit committee Report is given on page 44 to 45 of this Annual Report.



P
E
G

A
S
U

S
 H

O
TE

LS
 O

F 
C

E
Y
LO

N
 P

LC
 

36

9.4 Directors’ Meetings Attendance

During the inancial year the board of Directors had four (04) board meetings and the attendance of the Directors 

were as follows;

board meetings Attended/ eligible to Attend

mr. D.c.R. gunawardena (chairman) 4/4

mr. H. selvanathan 4/4

mr. m. selvanathan 2/4

mr. s. nagendra 4/4

mr. m. Dayananda * 3/4

mr. W.A.A. De Z. gunasekera ** 2/4

mr. P. m. Withana *** 3/4

mr. K.c.n. fernando (Alternate Director to  
mr. m. selvanathan) 

2/4

* Appointed to the board w.e.f. 15th July 2014.

** Appointed to the board w.e.f. 19th november 2014.

*** Resigned from the board w.e.f. 31st January 2015.

10. NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee of the company comprises of the following members ;

nomination committee members executive / non-executive/ Independent

mr. s. nagendra (chairman) non-executive/ Independent Director

mr. D.c.R. gunawardena non-executive Director 

Scope and Objective

The primary objective of the nomination committee is to lead the process for board appointments of new Directors 

within group companies and the nominations of members to represent the company in group companies/ investee 

companies.

Functions and Proceedings

The nomination committee recommends new appointments to the board. based on the recommendation of the 

nomination committee, the board approves the new appointments of executive and non-executive Directors to the 

board.

ANNUAL REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
ON THE AFFAIRS OF THE COMPANY



A
N

N
U

A
L 

R
E
P
O

R
T 

2
0
1

4
-1

5

37

Any Director of the board and the chief executive Oficer/ Director-in-charge and other members of senior 

management may be invited to attend meetings of the nomination committee. The committee may also invite 

appointed external consultants to aid the committee in the discharge of its duties.

The committee is authorised by the board to seek appropriate professional advice internally and externally as and 

when considered necessary.

The nomination committee meets at least twice a year. 

During the period under review the committee had two meetings with all members in attendance.

nomination committee Attended/eligible to Attend

mr. s. nagendra (chairman) 2/2

mr. D.c.R. gunawardena 2/2

During the year, the committee recommended to the board that mr. m. Dayananda and mr. W.A.A. De. Z. gunasekera 

be appointed to the board as non-executive Directors. These recommendations were accepted by the board.

11. BOARD EVALUATION

As suggested in the code of best Practice on corporate governance, a ‘board Appraisal form’ was introduced for 

the year 2014/15 to evaluate the performance of the board in order to ensure that the responsibilities of Directors 

towards the board and the company are met.

The ‘board evaluation form’ comprises of the following broad themes;

•	 Core	Board	Responsibilities

•	 Board	Meetings

•	 Committee	Meetings	(any/	all	sub-committees)

•	 Relationship	with	Management

•	 Individual	self-assessment

•	 Stakeholder	and	Shareholder	communication/	relationship

•	 Suggestions/	comments

The nomination committee of the company collates all the comments received from the Directors and reports the 

results and proposed actions to the board of Directors.
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12. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS EXCEEDING 10% OF THE EQUITY OR 5% OF THE TOTAL 

ASSETS OF THE COMPANY

There were no transactions entered into by the company the value of which exceeded 10% of the shareholders’ 

equity or 5% of the total assets of the company as at 31st march 2015. 

The details of the related party transactions are given in note 33 on page 86 to 88 of the inancial statements.

12.1 Related Party Transactions Review Committee

The company is in the process of forming a “Related Party Transactions Review committee” to comply with the 

colombo stock exchange listing Rules, section 9, which would come into effect from 1st January 2016.

13. INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The company’s and the group’s auditors during the year under review were messrs. KPmg, chartered 

Accountants.

A sum of Rs. 274,000/- and Rs. 469,000/- (2014 - Rs. 245,000/- and Rs. 433,000/-). was paid to them by the 

company and the group respectively, as audit fees for the year ended 31st march 2015. In addition to the above, 

the auditors were paid Rs. 51,000/- and Rs. 51,000/- (2014 – Rs. 71,000/- and Rs. 91,000/-) as professional 

fees for audit related services for the company and the group respectively. further, no payments were made by the 

company & the group for non - audit services (2014 – Rs. 75,000/-).

The retiring auditors have expressed their willingness to continue in ofice. 

A resolution to re-appoint them as Independent Auditors of the company and authorizing the Directors to ix their 

remuneration will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual general meeting.

The Audit committee reviewed the appointment of the auditors, its effectiveness and their relationship with the 

company and the subsidiary, including the level of audit and non-audit fees paid to the auditors.

13.1  Auditors’ Relationship or any interest with the Company

The Directors are satisied that, based on written representations made by the Independent Auditors to the board, 

the Auditors did not have any interest with the company and its subsidiary that would impair their independence.

ANNUAL REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
ON THE AFFAIRS OF THE COMPANY
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14. INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT 

The ultimate responsibility to establish, monitor and review a group-wide internal control system rests with the board 

of Directors. The intensity, depth and the tolerance limits for each component of the internal control system would 

be based on the weight of the element of risk imposed on the sustenance of the business by the respective area of 

operation. Whilst a strong internal control system would mitigate the crystallization of risk elements to a greater 

extent, employment of external support structures would also be necessary based on the risk assessments made 

thereon. 

effective maintenance of internal controls, risk identiication and mitigation is handed down to the respective 

members of senior management within the guidelines of benchmark policies, procedures and authority limits clearly 

laid down.

group Internal Audit, whose scope of scrutiny is entirely driven by the grading of the risk involved will be 

monitoring and providing the feedback to the management and to the respective Audit committees. Regular 

submission of compliance and internal solvency certiicates vouched by the heads of the respective divisions as a 

mandatory agenda item keeps the Directors abreast of the health of the company’s and the group’s resource base 

and governance requirements. 

This allows the board to have total control of the fulilment of governance requirements by providing opportunity to 

take timely preventive action in case of potential deterioration of status quo. more detailed description of the risk 

management strategies of the company and the group are given on page 22. 

15. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR 

There were no signiicant events during the year. 

16. DIVIDEND

subject to the approval of the shareholders at the Annual general meeting, a irst and inal dividend of Rs. 0.50 

per ordinary share is recommended by the Directors for the year ended 31st march 2015 (2014 – Rs. 0.50).

17. SOLVENCY TEST

Taking into account the said distribution, the Directors are satisied that the company would meet the solvency test 

requirement under section 56 (2) of the companies Act no. 07 of 2007 immediately after the distribution. The 

company’s Auditors, KPmg, chartered Accountants have issued a certiicate of solvency conirming same. 
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18. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The company and the group is sensitive to the needs of the environment and makes every endeavour to comply 

with the relevant environmental laws, regulations and best practices applicable in the country. After making 

adequate inquiries from the management, the Directors are satisied that the company and its subsidiary operates 

in a manner that minimizes the detrimental effects on the environment and provides services that have a beneicial 

effect on the customers and the communities within which the company and its subsidiary operates. 

19. STATED CAPITAL

The stated capital of the company as at 31st march 2015 was Rs. 515,169,681/- consisting of 30,391,538 

ordinary shares. 

There was no change in the stated capital of the company during the year.

20. DEEMED CAPITAL CONTRIBUTION

The Parent company, carson cumberbatch Plc, on behalf of the company, has provided a corporate guarantee 

to commercial bank of ceylon Plc, in securing bank borrowing facilities extended under the ‘Tsunami funding 

scheme’ at concessionary rates. 

sri lanka Accounting standards (lKAs 39) – “finance instruments – measurement and Recognition“ require 

‘financial guarantee contracts’ of this nature to be recognized at their fair value in the inancial statements and 

accordingly an amount of Rs. 5,351,660/- has been included in the “stated capital”, being ‘Deemed capital 

contribution’ arising from the said transaction at each of the reporting dates. 

21. STATUTORY PAYMENTS

The Directors to the best of their knowledge and belief are satisied that all statutory payments have been paid up to 

date or have been provided for in these inancial statements.

22. GOING CONCERN

The board of Directors is satisied that the company and its subsidiary has adequate resources to continue their 

operations in the foreseeable future. Accordingly, these inancial statements are prepared based on the going 

concern concept.

ANNUAL REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
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23. DONATIONS

Details of donations granted by the company and the group during the year are given in note 13 to the inancial 

statements.

24. HUMAN RESOURCES 

The company and the group continue to invest in human capital development and implement effective human 

resource practices and policies to develop and build an eficient and effective workforce aligned around it’s 

business priorities and to ensure that its employees are developing the skills and knowledge required for future 

success of the company and the group.

The number of persons employed by the company and the group as at 31st march 2015 were 181 and 251 

(2014 – 168 and 238) respectively. 

management support services are provided by carsons management services (Private) limited (cmsl). 

25. MATERIAL ISSUES PERTAINING TO EMPLOYEES AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

There were no material issues relating to employees and industrial relations during the year ended 31st march 

2015. 

26. OUTSTANDING LITIGATION 

The outstanding litigations related to the company are shown in note 31 to these inancial statements. 

27. EQUITABLE TREATMENT TO SHAREHOLDERS 

The company endeavours at all times to ensure equitable treatment to all shareholders. 

28. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

subsequent to the reporting date, no circumstances have arisen, which would require adjustments to or disclosures 

in the inancial statements, other than those disclosed in note 35 to the inancial statements.

29. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL COMMITMENT

The contingent liabilities and commitments as at 31st march 2015 are given in note 31 to the inancial statements.
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30. SHARE INFORMATION

Information relating to share trading are given on pages 91 and 92 of this Report.

31. TWENTY MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS WITH COMPARATIVES

The Parent company, carson cumberbatch Plc holds 93.09% of the total Ordinary shares in issue of the 

company as at 31st march 2015. 

Twenty Major Shareholders as at 31st March
2015 2014

 No. of shares %  No. of shares %

carson cumberbatch Plc 28,290,958 93.09 28,290,958 93.09

Dee Investments (Private) limited 180,903 0.60 180,903 0.60

mrs. n. H. Abdul Husein 125,500 0.41 85,798 0.28

mr. m.c.c.K. Rodrigo 100,010 0.33 - -

mr. D.f.g. Dalpethado 64,855 0.21 1 -

mrs. I. gwyn 55,000 0.18 55,000 0.18

code-gen International (Private) limited 50,000 0.16 50,100 0.16

mr. H.W.m. Woodward 42,679 0.14 42,679 0.14

mr. D. Weerawardana 40,000 0.13 - -

mr. K.A.s.R. nissanka 35,000 0.12 - -

mr. P. somadasa 33,794 0.11 19,004 0.06

People’s leasing & finance Plc/ l.P. Hapangama 30,537 0.10 - -

Acuity Partners (Pvt) limited/ mr. n.K. Punchihewa 30,000 0.10 30,000 0.10

seylan bank Plc/ mr. s.n.c.W.m.b.c. Kandegedara 29,999 0.10 - -

Asha financial services ltd/ mr. e.m.R. egodawatte 28,500 0.09 27,000 0.09

Pan Asia banking corporation Plc/ mr. R.e. 
Rambukwelle 

28,000 0.09 25,000 0.08

mr. H.s.m. Pieris 25,000 0.08 25,000 0.08

mr. K.c. Jayawardene 23,960 0.08 21,800 0.07

ms. c. Wijerathne 23,166 0.08 - -

Dr. m. Ramasubbu 22,695 0.07 22,695 0.07

ANNUAL REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
ON THE AFFAIRS OF THE COMPANY



A
N

N
U

A
L 

R
E
P
O

R
T 

2
0
1

4
-1

5

43

32. ANNUAL REPORT

The board of Directors on 12th may 2015 approved the company’s inancial statements together with the reviews 

which forms part of the Annual Report. The appropriate number of copies of the Annual Report would be submitted 

to the colombo stock exchange, sri lanka Accounting and Auditing standard monitoring board and the Registrar 

of companies within the given time frames.

33. ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 49th Annual general meeting of the company will be held on Wednesday, 17th June 2015 at Pegasus Reef 

Hotel, santha maria mawatha, Hendala, Wattala. 

The notice of the Annual general meeting is on page 93 of the Annual Report.

signed on behalf of the board,

(sgd.) (sgd.)

D.C.R. Gunawardena M. Selvanathan 
chairman Director

(sgd.)

K. D. De Silva (Mrs.)

Director

carsons management services (Private) limited

secretaries

12th may 2015
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The Audit committee of carson 

cumberbatch Plc (ccPlc) - the Parent 

company functions as the Audit 

committee of the company.

The Audit committee consists of the 

following members : 

Audit 
committee 
members

executive/
non-executive/
Independent

mr.vijaya 

malalasekera 

(chairman)

non-executive, 

Independent 

(ccPlc)

mr.chandima 

gunawardena

non-executive 

(ccPlc)

mr.faiz 

mohideen

non-executive, 

Independent 

(ccPlc)

mr.vijaya malalasekera is a non-

executive, Independent Director of 

ccPlc and a former  Director of 

ceylon Tobacco company Plc.

mr.chandima gunawardena is a 

non-executive Director of ccPlc and 

in most of its group companies.  He 

is a fellow of the chartered Institute of 

management Accountants, u.K.

mr.faiz mohideen, a non-executive, 

Independent Director of ccPlc, was 

the former Deputy secretary to the 

Treasury and a former Director of 

bank of ceylon and securities and 

exchange commission of sri lanka. 

The purpose of the Audit committee of 

ccPlc is as follows :

To assist the board of Directors in 

fulilling its oversight responsibilities 

for the inancial reporting process, 

the system of internal control over 

inancial reporting, the audit  

process and the company’s process 

for monitoring compliance with laws 

and  regulations, company policies 

and procedures and the code of 

conduct.

To ensure that the internal audit 

activity is well managed, so that 

it adds value to the organization 

by being objective in providing 

relevant assurance, contributing  to 

the effectiveness and eficiency of 

governance, risk management and 

control processes.

The audit aspects of Pegasus Hotels of 

ceylon Plc are conducted within the 

Agenda of ccPlc-Audit committee.   

ccPlc-Audit committee held 06 

meetings during the inancial year 

to discuss matters relating to the 

company and the attendance of the 

members of the Audit committee was 

as follows:

meetings attended (out of six)

mr.vijaya malalasekera 

(chairman)

05

mr.chandima gunawardena 06

mr.faiz mohideen 06

The financial controller - carsons 

management services (Private) 

limited-managers, internal auditors 

and senior management staff members 

of the leisure sector also attended 

the Audit committee meetings by 

invitation.     

The committee met the external 

Auditors, messrs. KPmg, twice during 

the year to discuss the audit scope 

and to deliberate the draft financial 

Report and Accounts.   The Audit 

committee also discussed the draft 

financial Report and Accounts, with 

the external Auditors, without the 

management being present to foster 

an unbiased, independent dialogue. 

The Audit committee approved the 

audit plan for the inancial year 

2014/2015 and the group Internal 

Audit (gIA) carried out 03 audits on 

the leisure sector companies based 

on the plan. 

The indings and contents of the 

group Internal Audit reports have 

been discussed with the relevant 

management staff and subsequently 

the audit reports were circulated to 

the Audit committee and to the senior 

management. 

The objectives of the gIA work was 

to have an independent review of 

the system of internal controls as 

established by the management, 

its adequacy and integrity vis-à-vis 

objectives served and to determine the 

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT
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extent of adherence to the controls by 

staff responsible for the function and 

to take corrective/preventive action 

where necessary.

As approved by the Audit committee, 

messrs. KPmg, as part of their 

regular audit scope has commenced 

a comprehensive external IT security 

and process audit  covering the 

entire carsons management services 

(Private) limited (managers to the   

company) - IT environment, which 

extends to the leisure sector, as well.

The interim inancial statements 

of Pegasus Hotels of ceylon Plc 

have been reviewed by the Audit 

committee members at Audit 

committee meetings, prior to  release 

of same to the Regulatory Authorities 

and to the shareholders.

The draft inancial statements of 

Pegasus Hotels of ceylon Plc for the 

year ended 31st march 2015 were 

reviewed at a meeting of the Audit 

committee, together with the external 

Auditors, messrs. KPmg, prior to 

release of same to the Regulatory 

Authorities and to the shareholders.  

The Audit committee was provided 

with conirmations and declarations as 

required, by the managers, carsons 

management services (Private) limited 

that the said inancial statements 

were prepared in accordance with 

the sri lanka Accounting standards 

and the information required by the 

companies Act no. 7 of 2007 therein 

and presented a true and fair view of 

the company’s state of affairs as at 

that date and the company’s activities 

during the year under review.

The Audit committee has determined 

that messrs. KPmg, chartered 

Accountants, Auditors were 

independent on the basis that they did 

not carry out any management related 

functions of the company.

The Audit committee has concurred to 

recommend to the board of Directors 

the re-appointment of messrs. KPmg, 

chartered Accountants, as Auditors 

for the inancial year ending 31st 

march 2016, subject to the approval 

of the shareholders of Pegasus Hotels 

of ceylon Plc at the Annual general 

meeting.

(sgd.)

V.P. Malalasekera
chairman – Audit committee

carson cumberbatch Plc

12th may 2015  
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Quarterly Financial Statements

01st Quarter ended  30th June 2014

Issued to colombo stock exchange on  14th August 2014

02nd Quarter ended  30th September 2014

Issued to colombo stock exchange on  14th november 2014

03rd Quarter ended  31st December 2014

Issued to colombo stock exchange on  13th february 2015

Annual Report for the year ended    -  31st March 2015

49th Annual General Meeting          -  17th June 2015

FINANCIAL CALENDAR 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF PEGASUS HOTELS OF CEYLON PLC

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying inancial statements of Pegasus 
Hotels of ceylon Plc, (“the company”), and the consolidated 
inancial statements of the company and its subsidiary (“the 
group”), which comprise the statement of inancial position as 
at 31st march 2015, and the statement of proit or loss and 
other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and 
cash low statement for the year then ended, and a summary of 
signiicant accounting policies and other explanatory notes set out 
on pages 50 to 88.

Board’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The board of Directors (“board”) is responsible for the preparation 
of these inancial statements that give a true and fair view in 
accordance with sri lanka Accounting standards, and for such 
internal control as board determines is necessary to enable the 
preparation of inancial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these inancial 
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with sri lanka Auditing standards. Those standards 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
inancial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence 
about the amounts and disclosures in the inancial statements. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including 
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the inancial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the 
entity’s preparation of the -inancial statements that give a true and 
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit 
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by 
board, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the inancial 
statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated inancial statements give a true and 
fair view of the inancial position of the group as at 31st march 
2015, and of its inancial performance and cash lows for the year 
then ended in accordance with sri lanka Accounting standards.

Emphasis of Matter

Without qualifying our opinion we draw attention to note 20 
to these inancial statements. As explained in the said note, the 
company has submitted a claim of compensation to the Divisional 
secretary for the compulsory acquisition of the land, and a 
receivable of Rs.122,544,902 has been recognized in the inancial 
statements under non current assets. As at the reporting date, the 
company has not received any conirmation regarding the value 
of the claim from the Divisional secretary. This situation indicates 
the existence of uncertainty as at the reporting date, regarding the 
recovery and ultimate realization of the compensation due from the 
government of sri lanka.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by section 163 (2) of the companies Act no. 7 of 
2007, we state the following:

a) The basis of opinion and scope and limitations of the audit are 
as stated above.

b) In our opinion

- We have obtained all the information and explanations that 
were required for the audit and, as far as appears from our 
examination, proper accounting records have been kept by 
the company. 

- The inancial statements of the company give a true and fair 
view of its inancial position as at 31st march 2015, and of 
its inancial performance and cash lows for the year then 
ended in accordance with sri lanka Accounting standards.

- The inancial statements of the company, and the group 
comply with the requirements of sections 151 and 153 of 
the companies Act no. 7 of 2007.

chartered Accountants

12th may 2015
colombo. 
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(All igures in sri lankan Rupees thousands)

For the year ended 31st March Notes

Group Company

2015 2014 2015 2014

Revenue 11 510,255 452,205 425,543 370,723 
Direct costs (280,629) (257,983) (229,356) (210,493)
Gross proit 229,626 194,222 196,187 160,230 

Other income 12 6,289 7,232 4,048 5,223 
selling and promotional expenses (15,046) (15,589) (12,398) (12,728)
Administrative expenses (128,504) (117,952) (98,937) (91,070)
Proit from operations 13 92,365 67,913 88,900 61,655 

finance income 14 19,079 14,982 23,447 23,805 
finance costs 14 (1,118) (7,563) (1,118) (7,321)
Net inance income 14 17,961 7,419 22,329 16,484 

Proit before taxation 110,326 75,332 111,229 78,139 
Income tax expenses 15 (8,640) (4,353) (7,055) (3,199)
Deferred taxation 15 (5,818) (4,423) (5,442) (4,472)
Proit for the year 95,868 66,556 98,732 70,468 

Other comprehensive income
Actuarial loss from valuation of employee beneits 29.2 (1,075) (1,175) (705) (630)
Other comprehensive expense for the year (1,075) (1,175) (705) (630)

Total comprehensive income for the year 94,793 65,381 98,027 69,838 

earnings per share (Rs.) 16 3.15 2.19 3.25 2.32 

The notes from pages 54 to 88 form an integral part of these inancial statements.      

figures in brackets indicate deductions.    

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER 

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(All igures in sri lankan Rupees thousands)

As at 31st March Notes

Group Company

2015 2014 2015 2014

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 17  1,157,858  1,171,770  1,131,813  1,143,162 
Intangible assets 18  115,287  115,287 - -
Investment in subsidiary 19 - -  110,223  110,223 
compensation receivable 20  122,545  109,906  122,545  109,906 
Total non-current assets  1,395,690  1,396,963  1,364,581  1,363,291 
Current assets
Inventories 21  13,061  12,836  9,172  9,258 
Trade and other receivables 22  46,165  48,096  39,055  38,573 
cash and cash equivalents 23  135,017  73,077  123,071  66,033 
Total current assets  194,243  134,009  171,298  113,864 
Total assets  1,589,933  1,530,972  1,535,879  1,477,155 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
stated capital 24  515,170  515,170  515,170  515,170 
capital reserves 25  675,099  675,099  675,099  675,099 
Revenue reserves 26  282,152  202,555  252,020  169,189 
Total equity  1,472,421  1,392,824  1,442,289  1,359,458 
Non-current liabilities
loans and borrowings 27 -  7,878 -  7,878 
Deferred tax liability 28  34,559  28,741  33,014  27,572 
employee beneits 29  12,495  14,063  6,739  9,278 
Total non-current liabilities  47,054  50,682  39,753  44,728 
Current liabilities
loans and borrowings 27  -  8,568  -  8,568 
Trade and other payables 30  64,809  75,242  48,627  61,796 
current tax liabilities  5,649  3,656  5,210  2,605 
Total current liabilities  70,458  87,466  53,837  72,969 
Total liabilities  117,512  138,148  93,590  117,697 
Total equity and liabilities  1,589,933  1,530,972  1,535,879  1,477,155 

Net assets per share (Rs.)  48.45  45.83  47.46  44.73 

The notes from pages 54 to 88 form an integral part of these inancial statements.
I certify that these inancial statements are in compliance with the requirements of companies Act no. 7 of 2007. 

(sgd.)
V.R. Wijesinghe
financial controller 
carsons management services (Private) limited

The board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these inancial statements. These inancial statements were 
approved by the board on 12th may 2015.

Approved and signed on behalf of the managers, Approved and signed on behalf of the board, 

(sgd.) (sgd.) (sgd.) 
A.P. Weeratunge D.C.R. Gunawardena M. Selvanathan 
Director chairman Director 
carsons management services (Private) limited
colombo
12th may 2015
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(All igures in sri lankan Rupees thousands)

Group

Capital reserves Revenue reserves Total equity 
attributable 

to equity 
holders of 
the parent 
company

Stated capital Revaluation 
reserve

Capital 
accretion 

reserve

General 
reserve

Retained 
earnings

balance as at 1st April 2013  515,170  659,955  15,144  176  152,194  1,342,639 
Proit for the year  -  -  -  -  66,556  66,556 
Other comprehensive expense for the year  -  -  -  -  (1,175)  (1,175)
Total comprehensive income for the year  -  -  -  -  65,381  65,381 
Dividend paid - 2012/13  -  -  -  -  (15,196)  (15,196)
balance as at 31st march 2014  515,170  659,955  15,144  176  202,379  1,392,824 

balance as at 1st April 2014  515,170  659,955  15,144  176  202,379  1,392,824 
Proit for the year  -  -  -  -  95,868  95,868 
Other comprehensive expense for the year  -  -  -  -  (1,075)  (1,075)
Total comprehensive income for the year  -  -  -  -  94,793  94,793 
Dividend paid - 2013/14  -  -  -  -  (15,196)  (15,196)
balance as at 31st march 2015  515,170  659,955  15,144  176  281,976  1,472,421 

Company

Capital reserves Revenue reserves

Stated capital Revaluation 
reserve

Capital 
accretion 

reserve

General 
reserve

Retained 
earnings

Total equity 

balance as at 1st April 2013  515,170  659,955  15,144  176  114,371  1,304,816 
Proit for the year  -  -  -  -  70,468  70,468 
Other comprehensive expense for the year  -  -  -  -  (630)  (630)
Total comprehensive income for the year  -  -  -  -  69,838  69,838 
Dividend paid - 2012/13  -  -  -  -  (15,196)  (15,196)
balance as at 31st march 2014  515,170  659,955  15,144  176  169,013  1,359,458 

balance as at 1st April 2014  515,170  659,955  15,144  176  169,013  1,359,458 
Proit for the year  -  -  -  -  98,732  98,732 
Other comprehensive expense for the year  -  -  -  -  (705)  (705)
Total comprehensive income for the year  -  -  -  -  98,027  98,027 
Dividend paid - 2013/14  -  -  -  -  (15,196)  (15,196)
balance as at 31st march 2015  515,170  659,955  15,144  176  251,844  1,442,289 

The notes from pages 54 to 88 form an integral part of these inancial statements.     

figures in brackets indicate deductions.  

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW

(All igures in sri lankan Rupees thousands)

For the year ended 31st March Note

Group Company

2015 2014 2015 2014

Cash lows from operating activities
Proit before taxation  110,326  75,332  111,229  78,139 
Adjustments for:
loss on disposal property, plant and equipment  96  -  75  - 

Interest income on placements with banks and government 
securities 14  (6,126)  (3,048)  (5,608)  (3,021)
Dividend income 14  -  -  (4,935)  (8,945)
unwinding of discount on compensation receivable 14  (12,639)  (11,465)  (12,639)  (11,465)
Interest expenses on bank borrowings 14  449  1,900  449  1,900 
Interest expenses on related party borrowings 14  367  5,256  367  5,014 
corporate guarantee charges 14  302  407  302  407 
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 17  39,415  36,582  35,642  32,870 
Provision for employee beneits  2,821  2,669  1,865  1,908 

Provision/ (reversal of provision) for impairment of trade 
receivables  (126)  955  -  921 
Proit before working capital changes  134,885  108,588  126,747  97,728 
(Increase)/ decrease in inventories  (225)  2,145  86  2,360 
(Increase)/ decrease in trade and other receivables  1,755  6,550  (784)  1,919 
Increase/ (decrease) in trade and other payables  9,400  8,521  6,664  7,577 
Cash generated from operations  145,815  125,804  132,713  109,584 
employee beneits paid 29  (5,464)  (246)  (5,109)  (246)
Income tax paid  (6,647)  (5,561)  (4,450)  (4,259)
Net cash generated from operating activities  133,704  119,997  123,154  105,079 

Cash lows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 17  (26,206)  (61,475)  (24,717)  (60,092)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment  607  525  349  469 
Interest received  6,126  3,048  5,608  3,021 
Dividend received  -  -  4,935  8,945 
Net cash used in investing activities  (19,473)  (57,902)  (13,825)  (47,657)

Cash lows from inancing activities
Dividend paid  (15,080)  (15,108)  (15,080)  (15,196)
loans and borrowings repaid during the year  (16,446)  (8,568)  (16,446)  (8,568)
net amounts settled to related companies including interest  (20,316)  (36,823)  (20,316)  (36,581)
Interest paid on bank borrowings  (449)  (1,900)  (449)  (1,900)
Net cash used in inancing activities  (52,291)  (62,399)  (52,291)  (62,245)

net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  61,940  (304)  57,038  (4,823)
cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  73,077  73,381  66,033  70,856 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 23  135,017  73,077  123,071  66,033 

The notes from pages 54 to 88 form an integral part of these inancial statements.      

figures in brackets indicate deductions.         
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1. REPORTING ENTITY

 Pegasus Hotels of ceylon Plc (the ‘company’) is a 

company domiciled in sri lanka. The shares of the 

company have a primary listing on the colombo 

stock exchange.

 The address of the company’s registered ofice is 

no. 61, Janadhipathi mawatha, colombo 1. The 

Principle place of business of the company is santa 

maria mawatha, Hendala, Wattala.

 The principle activity of the company and the 

group is hoteliering and leisure related activities.

 There were no signiicant changes in the nature 

of the principal activities of the company and the 

group during the inancial year under review.

 The group had 251 (2014 - 238) employees at the 

end of the inancial year. The company had 181 

(2014 - 168) employees as at the reporting date.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

a) Statement of compliance

 The inancial statements of the company and the 

group comprise the statement of inancial position, 

statement of proit or loss, statement of changes in 

equity and statement of cash low together with the 

notes to the inancial statements.

 The consolidated inancial statements have been 

prepared in accordance with sri lanka Accounting 

standards (lKAs / slfRs) laid down by the Institute 

of chartered Accountants of sri lanka and the 

requirements of companies Act, no. 7 of 2007.

 The consolidated inancial statements were 

authorized for issue by the board of Directors on 

12th may 2015.

b) Basis of measurement

 The consolidated inancial statements have been 

prepared on the historical cost basis and applied 

consistently with no adjustments being made for 

inlationary factors affecting the inancial statements, 

except for the following material items in the 

statement of inancial position;

•	 Land	and	buildings	are	measured	at	revalued	

amounts.

•	 Deined	beneit	obligations	are	measured	at	its	

present value based on an actuarial valuation as 

explained in note 29.

•	 Compensation	receivable	measured	at	amortised	

cost as explained in note 20.

 These inancial statements have been prepared on 

the basis that the company and the group would 

continue as a going concern for the foreseeable 

future. 

c) Functional and Presentation Currency

 Items included in the inancial statements of each of 

the group entities are measured using the currency 

of the primary economic environment in which 

the entities operate (‘the functional currency’). The 

consolidated inancial statements are presented 

in sri lankan Rupees, which is the functional 

and presentation currency of company and its 

subsidiary.

d) Use of estimates and judgments

 The preparation of the consolidated inancial 

statements in conformity with lKAs/slfRs requires 

management to make judgments, estimates and 

assumptions that affect the application of accounting 

policies and the reported amounts of assets, 

liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may 

differ from these estimates.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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 estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed 

on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 

estimates are recognised in the period in which 

the estimates are revised and in any future periods 

affected.

 Information about assumptions and estimation 

uncertainties that have a signiicant risk of resulting 

in a material adjustment with the next inancial year 

are included in the following notes;

•	 Assessment	of	Impairment	-	Key	assumptions	
used in discounted cash low projections.

 The company and the group assesses at each 

reporting date whether there is objective evidence 

that an asset or portfolio of assets is impaired. The 

recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its 

value in use and its fair value less cost to sell.

 In assessing value in use, the estimated future 

cash lows are discounted to present value using 

appropriate discount rates that relects the current 

market assessments of the time value of money and 

risks speciic to the asset. The carrying value of 

goodwill is reviewed at each reporting date and 

is written down to the extent that it is no longer 

supported by probable future beneits. goodwill 

is allocated to cgu for the purpose of impairment 

testing. 

•	 Deferred	taxation	-	utilization	of	tax	losses

 Deferred tax assets are recognized for all unused 

tax losses to the extent that it is probable that 

taxable proit will be available against which the 

losses can be utilized. management judgment is 

required to determine the amount of deferred tax 

assets that can be recognized, based upon the 

level of future taxable proits together with future tax 

planning strategies.

•	 Deined	beneit	plans

 The assessment of the liability of deined beneit 

obligations involves a signiicant element of 

assumptions; including discount rates, future salary 

increases, mortality rates and future pension 

increases. Due to the long-term nature of these 

plans, such estimates are subject to uncertainty.

•	 Current	taxation

 current tax liabilities arise to the company and the 

group in various jurisdictions. These liabilities are 

provided for in the inancial statements applying 

the relevant tax statutes and regulations which the 

management believes relect the actual liability. 

There can be instances where the stand taken by 

the company and the group on transactions is 

contested by revenue authorities. Any additional 

costs on account of these issues are accounted 

for as a tax expense at the point the liability is 

conirmed on any group entity.

e) Measurement of fair values 

  A number of the group’s accounting policies and 

disclosures require the measurement of fair values, 

for both inancial and non- inancial assets and 

liabilities.

 group regularly reviews signiicant unobservable 

inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party 

information is used to measure fair values, group 

assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties 

to support the conclusion that such valuations meet 

the requirements of slfRs, including the level in the 

fair value hierarchy in which such valuations should 

be classiied.

  signiicant valuation issues are reported to the 

group’s Audit committee.
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 When measuring the fair value of an asset or a 

liability, the group uses observable market data 

as far as possible. fair values are categorised into 

different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the 

inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows.

 level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets 

for identical assets or liabilities.

 level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in 

level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, 

either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. 

derived from prices).

 level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not 

based on observable market data. (unobservable 

inputs).

 If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an 

asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair 

value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is 

categorised in its entirety in the same level of the 

fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is 

signiicant to the entire measurement.

 The group recognises transfers between levels of 

the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting 

period during which the change has occurred.

  further information about the assumption made in 

measuring fair value is included in note 32.

f) Materiality and aggregation

 each material class of similar items is presented 

in aggregate in the inancial statements. Items 

of dissimilar nature or function are presented 

separately unless they are immaterial.

3. CHANGES TO ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

AND ADOPTION OF NEW ACCOUNTING 

STANDARDS

 The group has consistently applied the accounting 

policies as set out in note 4 to all periods presented 

in these consolidated inancial statements.

 The group has adopted the following new 

standards and amendments to standards, including 

any consequential amendments to other standards, 

with a date of initial application of 1st April 2014.

•	 SLFRS	10	“Consolidated	inancial	statements”

 As a result of slfRs 10, the group has changed 

its accounting policy for determining whether 

it has control over and consequently whether it 

consolidates other entities. slfRs 10 introduces 

a new control model that focuses on whether the 

group has power over an investee, exposure or 

rights to variable returns from its involvement with 

the investee and the ability to use its power to 

affect those returns The group reassessed its control 

conclusions as of 1st January 2014 and there was 

no change in control conclusion from previous year.

•	 SLFRS	12	”Disclosure	of	Interests	in	Other	
Entities”

 As a result of slfRs 12, the group has expanded 

disclosures about its interests in subsidiaries and 

involvement with unconsolidated structured entities.

•	 SLFRS	13,	“Fair	Value	Measurement”

 In accordance with the slfRs 13, the group has 

applied the new deinition of fair value, it veriies 

the deinition of fair value as the price that would 

be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer 

liability in an orderly transaction between market 

participants at the measurement date prospectively. 

The change had no signiicant impact on the 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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measurements of the group’s assets and liabilities, 

but the group has included new disclosures in the 

inancial statements, which are required under 

slfRs 13.

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 

POLICIES

 except to the changes explained in note 3, the 

accounting policies have been applied consistently 

by group entities.

a) Basis of consolidation

i. Business combinations

 The group accounts for business combinations using 

the acquisition method when control is transferred 

to the group .The consideration transferred in the 

acquisition is generally measured at fair value, 

as are the identiiable net assets acquired. Any 

goodwill that arises is tested annually for impairment 

.Any gain on a bargain purchase is recognised 

in proit or loss immediately. Transaction costs are 

expensed as incurred, except if related to the issue 

of debt or equity securities.

 The consideration transferred does not include 

amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing 

relationships. such amounts are generally 

recognised in proit or loss.

ii. Non-controlling interests

 ncIs are measured at their proportionate share of 

the acquiree’s identiiable net assets at the date of 

acquisition.

iii. Subsidiaries

 subsidiaries are entities controlled by the group. 

The group ‘controls’ an entity if it is exposed to, or 

has rights to, variable returns from its involvement 

with the investee and has the ability to affect 

those returns through its power over the entity. The 

inancial statements of subsidiaries are included in 

the consolidated inancial statements from the date 

that control commences until the date that control 

ceases.

 company’s subsidiary is equity Hotels limited of 

which company has 99.9% of shares ownership.

 Adjustments required to the accounting policies of 

subsidiary has been changed where ever necessary 

to align them with the policies adopted by the 

group.

 In the company’s inancial statements, investments in 

subsidiary is carried at cost less impairment if any, 

in net recoverable value.

 The consolidated inancial statements are prepared 

to a common inancial year end of 31st march.

iv. Loss of control

 upon loss of control, the group derecognises 

the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, non-

controlling interests and the other components of 

equity related to the subsidiary. Any surplus or 

deicit arising on the loss of control is recognised 

in the statement of comprehensive Income. If the 

group retains any interest in the previous subsidiary, 

then such interest is measured at fair value as at the 

date that control is lost. It is then accounted for an 

equity accounted investee or as an available-for-sale 

inancial asset depending on the level of inluence 

retained.

v. Transactions eliminated on consolidation

 Intra-group balances and transactions, and any 

unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-

group transactions, are eliminated in preparing the 

consolidated inancial statements. 
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b) Foreign currency

i. Foreign currency transactions

 Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to 

the respective functional currencies of group entities 

at exchange rates as at the dates of the transactions. 

monetary assets and liabilities denominated in 

foreign currencies at the reporting date are re-

translated to the functional currency at the exchange 

rate as at that date.

 The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary 

items is the difference between amortised cost in 

the functional currency at the beginning of the year, 

adjusted for effective interest and payments during 

the year, and the amortised cost in foreign currency 

translated at the exchange rate at the end of the year.

 non-monetary assets and liabilities that are 

measured at fair value in a foreign currency 

are retranslated to the functional currency at the 

exchange rate at the date that the fair value was 

determined. non-monetary items that are measured 

based on historical cost in a foreign currency are 

translated using the exchange rate at the date of the 

transaction.

 foreign currency differences arising on retranslation 

are generally recognised in proit or loss. 

c) Financial instruments

i. Non-derivative inancial assets

 The company and the group initially recognises 

non-derivative assets into the following categories: 

inancial assets at fair value through proit or 

loss, held-to-maturity inancial assets, loans and 

receivables and available-for-sale inancial assets. 

However, as at each reporting date, the company 

and the group holds only the inancial assets 

categorized as ‘loan and receivables’.

 The company and the group initially recognizes 

such inancial assets categorized as loan and 

receivables on the date they are originated.

 The company and the group de-recognises a 

inancial asset when the contractual rights to the 

cash lows from the asset expire, or it transfers the 

rights to receive the contractual cash lows in a 

transaction in which substantially all the risks and 

rewards of ownership of the inancial asset are 

transferred. Any interest in such transferred inancial 

assets that is created or retained by the company 

and the group is recognised as a separate asset or 

liability.

 financial assets and liabilities are offset and the 

net amount presented in the statement of inancial 

position when, and only when, the group has a 

legal right to offset the amounts and intends either to 

settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and 

settle the liability simultaneously.

Loans and receivables

 loans and receivables are inancial assets with ixed 

or determinable payments that are not quoted in an 

active market. such assets are recognised initially at 

fair value plus any directly attributable transaction 

costs. subsequent to initial recognition, loans and 

receivables are measured at amortised cost using 

the effective interest method, less any impairment 

losses.

 loans and receivables comprise cash and cash 

equivalents, compensation receivables and trade 

and other receivables.

Cash and cash equivalents

 cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances, 

placements with banking institutions and placement 

in government securities with maturities of three 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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months or less from the acquisition date that are 

subject to an insigniicant risk of changes in their 

fair value, and are used by the group in the 

management of its short-term commitments.

ii. Non-derivative inancial liabilities

 financial liabilities which are held by the company 

are recognised initially on the trade date, which 

is the date that the company and the group 

becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 

instrument.

 The company and the group de-recognises a 

inancial liability when its contractual obligations 

are discharged, cancelled or expire.

 The company and the group classiies non-

derivative inancial liabilities into the other inancial 

liabilities category. such inancial liabilities are 

recognised initially at fair value less any directly 

attributable transaction costs. subsequent to initial 

recognition, these inancial liabilities are measured 

at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

 Other inancial liabilities comprise loans and 

borrowings, bank overdrafts, and trade and other 

payables.

 bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand 

and form an integral part of the company and 

the group’s cash management are included as a 

component of cash and cash equivalents for the 

statement of cash lows.

iii. Stated capital

Ordinary shares

 Ordinary shares are classiied as equity. costs 

attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are 

recognised as an expense.

d) Property, plant and equipment

i. Recognition and measurement

 Items of property, plant and equipment are 

measured at cost/ fair value less accumulated 

depreciation and any accumulated impairment 

losses.

  If signiicant part of an item of property, plant and 

equipment have different useful lives, then they are 

accounted for as separate items (major components) 

of property, plant and equipment.

  Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, 

plant and equipment is recognized in proit or 

loss. 

ii. Revaluation of freehold properties

 The freehold properties of the company are carried 

at revalued amounts. Revaluation of these assets 

are carried out at least once in three (3) to ive (5)   

years in order to ensure the book value every year 

relect the realizable value of such assets, and are 

depreciated over the remaining useful lives of such 

assets, wherever applicable.

 When an asset is revalued, any increase in the 

carrying amount is credited to a revaluation surplus 

unless it reverses a previous revaluation decrease 

relating to the same asset, which was previously 

recognized as an expense. In these circumstances 

the increase is recognized as income to the extent of 

the previous write down. When an asset’s carrying 

amount is decreased as a result of a revaluation, 

the decrease is recognized as an expense unless it 

reverses a previous increment relating to that asset, 

in which case it is charged against any related 

revaluation surplus, to the extent that the decrease 

does not exceed the amount held in the revaluation 

surplus in respect of that same asset. Any balance 

remaining in the revaluation surplus in respect of an 

asset, is transferred directly to accumulated proits 

on retirement or disposal of the asset.
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iii. Subsequent costs

 subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when 

it is probable that the future economic beneits 

associated with the expenditure will low to the 

company and the group. Ongoing repairs and 

maintenance are expensed as incurred.

iv. Depreciation

 Items of property, plant and equipment are 

depreciated from the date they are available for use 

or, in respect of self-constructed assets, from the date 

that the asset is completed and ready for use.

 Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of 

items of property, plant and equipment less their 

estimated residual values using the straight-line 

basis over their estimated useful lives. Depreciation 

is generally recognised in proit or loss, unless 

the amount is included in the carrying amount of 

another asset. leased assets are depreciated over 

the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives 

unless it is reasonably certain that the group will 

obtain ownership by the end of the lease term. land 

is not depreciated.

 The estimated useful lives for the current and 

comparative years of signiicant items of property, 

plant and equipment are as follows;

  no of years

 buildings – freehold 3-75

 Plant and machinery 5-27

 motor vehicles 4-5

 Ofice equipment 5-16

 furniture, ittings 5-16

 computer equipments 3-5

 cutlery, crockery and glassware 5

 Depreciation of an asset begins when it is available 

for use whereas depreciation of an asset ceases 

at the earlier of the date that the asset is classiied 

as held for sale and the date that the asset is 

derecognised.

 Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual 

values are reviewed at each reporting date and 

adjusted if appropriate.

v. Disposal

 The gains or losses arising on disposal or retirement 

of an item of property, plant and equipment are 

determined by comparing the proceeds from 

disposal with the carrying amount of the property, 

plant and equipment are recognized net within 

‘Other Income’ in the statement of proit or loss. 

When revalued assets are sold, the amounts 

included in the revaluation reserve are transferred to 

retained earnings.

vi. Capital work-in-progress

 capital work-in-progress represents the accumulated 

cost of materials and other costs directly related 

to the construction of an asset. capital work-in 

progress is transferred to the respective asset 

accounts at the time it is substantially completed and 

ready for its intended use.

e) Intangible assets and goodwill

i. Goodwill

 goodwill has arisen on the acquisition of the 

subsidiary. It is presented along with intangible 

assets, in the statement of inancial position.

 goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated 

impairment losses. In respect of equity accounted 

investees, the carrying amount of goodwill is 

included in the carrying amount of the investment, 

and any impairment loss is allocated to the carrying 

amount of the equity accounted investee as a whole.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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ii. Software

 All computer software costs incurred, licensed for 

use by the company and the group, which are not 

integrally related to associated hardware, which 

can be clearly identiied, reliably measured and 

it’s probable that they will lead to future economic 

beneits, are included in the statement of financial 

Position under the category intangible assets and 

carried at cost less accumulated amortization and 

any accumulated impairment losses. These costs are 

amortised to the statement of proit or loss using the 

straight line method over 3 to 10 years.

iii. Subsequent expenditure

 subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when 

it increases the future economic beneits embodied 

in the speciic asset to which it relates. All other 

expenditure, including expenditure on internally 

generated goodwill and brands, is recognised in 

proit or loss as incurred.

iv. Amortisation

 except for goodwill, intangible assets are amortised 

on a straight-line basis in proit or loss over their 

estimated useful lives, from the date that they are 

available for use.

 The estimated useful lives for the current and 

comparative years are as follows;

  no of years

 software licenses 3-10

 Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual 

values are reviewed at each reporting date and 

adjusted if appropriate.

v. Impairment

 Intangible assets with indeinite useful lives or not yet 

available for use are tested for impairment annually 

or more frequently if events and circumstances 

indicate that the carrying value may be impaired 

either individually or at the cash-generating unit 

level. such intangible assets are not amortised. The 

useful life of an intangible asset with an indeinite 

useful life is reviewed annually to determine 

whether the useful life assessment continues to be 

supportable.

f) Inventories

 Inventories are recognized at cost and net 

realizable value whichever is lower after making 

due allowance for obsolete and slow moving items, 

except for fresh fruit bunches which are valued at 

since realized values.

 The cost of inventories are determined on a 

weighted average basis for food items which are 

ascertained on irst-in-irst out basis. The costs are 

derived on the following bases;

 engineering spares Weighted average basis 

and others 

 linen stock In the year of purchase at  

 cost of purchase and in the  

 second year in use at 25%  

 of the cost of purchase.

 food items first in irst out basis.

 engineering spares Weighted average basis. 

and others 

g) Impairment

i. Non-derivative inancial assets

 A inancial asset not classiied as at fair value 

through proit or loss, including an interest in an 

equity-accounted investee, is assessed at each 

reporting date to determine whether there is 

objective evidence that it is impaired. A inancial 

asset is impaired if there is objective evidence 

of impairment as a result of one or more events 
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that occurred after the initial recognition of the 

asset, and that loss event(s) had an impact on the 

estimated future cash lows of that asset that can be 

estimated reliably.

 Objective evidence that inancial assets are 

impaired includes default or delinquency by 

a debtor, restructuring of an amount due to 

the company and the group on terms that the 

company and the group would not consider 

otherwise, indications that a debtor or issuer will 

enter bankruptcy, adverse changes in the payment 

status of borrowers or issuers, economic conditions 

that correlate with defaults or the disappearance of 

an active market for a security.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

 The company and the group considers evidence 

of impairment for inancial assets measured at 

amortised cost (loans and receivables) at speciic 

asset level.

 An impairment loss in respect of a inancial asset 

measured at amortised cost is calculated as the 

difference between its carrying amount and the 

present value of the estimated future cash lows 

discounted at the asset’s original effective interest 

rate. losses are recognised in proit or loss and 

relected in an allowance account against loans 

and receivables. When an event occurring after 

the impairment was recognised causes the amount 

of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in 

impairment loss is reversed through proit or loss.

ii. Non-inancial assets

 The carrying amounts of the company and the 

group’s non-inancial assets, other than inventories 

and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each 

reporting date to determine whether there is any 

indication of impairment. If any such indication 

exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is 

estimated. goodwill and indeinite-lived intangible 

assets are tested annually for impairment. An 

impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount 

of an asset or cash generating unit (cgu) exceeds 

its recoverable amount.

 The recoverable amount of an asset or cgu is the 

greater of its value in use and its fair value less 

costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated 

future cash lows are discounted to their present 

value using a pre-tax discount rate that relects 

current market assessments of the time value of 

money and the risks speciic to the asset or cgu. 

for impairment testing, assets are grouped together 

into the smallest group of assets that generates 

cash inlows from continuing use that are largely 

independent of the cash inlows of other assets or 

cgus. subject to an operating segment ceiling test, 

cgus to which goodwill has been allocated are 

aggregated so that the level at which impairment 

testing is performed relects the lowest level at 

which goodwill is monitored for internal reporting 

purposes. goodwill acquired in a business 

combination is allocated to groups of cgus that 

are expected to beneit from the synergies of the 

combination.

 Impairment losses are recognised in proit or loss. 

Impairment losses recognised in respect of cgus 

are allocated irst to reduce the carrying amount 

of any goodwill allocated to the cgu (group of 

cgus), and then to reduce the carrying amounts of 

the other assets in the cgu (group of cgus) on a 

pro rata basis. 

 An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not 

reversed. for other assets, an impairment loss is 

reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying 

amount does not exceed the carrying amount that 

would have been determined, net of depreciation 

or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been 

recognised.
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h) Employee beneits

i. Short-term employee beneits

 short-term employee beneit obligations are 

measured on an undiscounted basis and are 

expensed as the related service is provided. A 

liability is recognised for the amount expected 

to be paid if the company and the group has a 

present legal or constructive obligation to pay this 

amount as a result of past service provided by the 

employee, and the obligation can be estimated 

reliably.

ii. Deined contribution plans – Employees’ 
Providend Fund and Employees’ Trust Fund

 A deined contribution plan is a post-employment 

beneit plan under which an entity pays ixed 

contributions into a separate entity and will have 

no legal or constructive obligation to pay further 

amounts. employees are eligible for employees’ 

Provident fund contributions and employees’ Trust 

fund contributions in line with respective statutes 

and regulations. The group contributes 12% and 

3% of gross emoluments of employees to employees’ 

Provident fund and employees’ Trust fund 

respectively and is recognised as an expense in 

proit and loss in the periods during which services 

are rendered by employees 

iii. Deined beneit plans

 The group net obligation in respect of deined 

beneit plan is calculated by estimating the amount 

of future beneits that employees have earned in 

current and prior periods and discounting that 

amount.

 The calculation of deined beneit obligation is 

performed annually by a qualiied actuary using the 

projected unit credit method. Re-measurement of the 

net deined beneit liability, which comprise actuarial 

gains and losses are recognized immediately in 

OcI. The group determine the net interest expense 

on the net deined beneit liability for the period 

by applying the discount rate used to measure the 

deined beneit obligation at the beginning of the 

annual period to the then-net deined liability, taking 

in to account any changes in the net deined beneit 

liability during the period as a result of contributions 

and beneit payments. net interest expense and 

other expenses related to deined beneit plans are 

recognized in proit or loss.

  The liability is not externally funded.

iv. Termination beneits

 Termination beneits are recognised as an 

expense when the company and the group is 

demonstrably committed, without realistic possibility 

of withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to either 

terminate employment before the normal retirement 

date, or to provide termination beneits as a result of 

an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. 

Termination beneits for voluntary redundancies are 

recognised as an expense if the company and the 

group has made an offer of voluntary redundancy, 

it is probable that the offer will be accepted, and the 

number of acceptances can be estimated reliably. 

If beneits are payable more than 12 months after 

the reporting date, then they are discounted to their 

present value.

i) Provisions

 A provision is recognised if, as a result of a 

past event, the company and the group has a 

present legal or constructive obligation that can be 

estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outlow 

of economic beneits will be required to settle the 

obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting 

the expected future cash lows at a pre-tax rate that 

relects current market assessments of the time value 

of money and the risks speciic to the liability. The 

unwinding of the discount is recognised as inance 

cost.
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j) Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

 A contingent liability is a possible obligation that 

arises from past events whose existence will be 

conirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence 

of one or more uncertain future events beyond 

the control of the company and the group or a 

present obligation that is not recognized because it 

is not probable that an outlow of resources will be 

required to settle the obligation.

 A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare 

cases where there is a liability that cannot be 

recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. 

The company and the group does not recognize a 

contingent liability but discloses its existence in the 

inancial statements.

 A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises 

from past events whose existence will be conirmed 

by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more 

uncertain future events beyond the control of the 

company and the group. The company and the 

group does not recognize contingent assets but 

discloses its existence where inlows of economic 

beneits are probable, but not virtually certain. 

In the acquisition of subsidiaries by the group 

under business combinations, contingent liabilities 

assumed are measured initially at their fair value at 

the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any 

minority interest.

k) Leases

Operating Lease

 lease of assets under which all the risks and 

beneits of ownership are retained by the lessor are 

classiied as operating leases. Payments made under 

operating leases are charged to the statement of 

proit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period 

of the lease.

 Assets held under operating leases are classiied 

as operating leases and are not recognised in the 

group’s statement of inancial position.

Lease payments

 Payments made under operating leases are 

recognised in proit or loss on a straight-line basis 

over the term of the lease. lease incentives received 

are recognised as an integral part of the total lease 

expense, over the term of the lease.

 The land where the equity hotel is located is on a 

30 year operating lease from 01st January 1997 

to 31st December 2026, with an option to extend 

for a further period of 30 years. During the lease 

period, the company has the right to use the land to 

construct and operate a tourist hotel, approved and 

categorized by the sri lanka Tourist board.

l) Revenue

 Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is 

probable that the economic beneits will low to 

the group, and the revenue and associated costs 

incurred or to be incurred can be reliably measured. 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the 

consideration received or receivable, net of trade 

discounts and sales taxes.

 The following speciic criteria are used for the 

purpose of recognition of revenue;

i. Room revenue

 Room revenue is recognized based on the number 

of rooms occupied.

ii. Food and beverage revenue

 Revenue from food and beverage is recognized at 

the time of the sale.
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iii. Other income

 Other income, including laundry and games are 

recognized on an accrual basis.

iv. Gains / (losses) on disposal of property, plant 
and equipment

 gains and losses of a revenue nature resulting from 

the disposal of property, plant and equipment are 

accounted on net basis.

m) Expenditure Recognition

i. Operating Expenses

 All expenses incurred in day-to-day operations of the 

business and in maintaining the property, plant & 

equipment in a state of eficiency has been charged 

to revenue in arriving at the proit or loss for the 

year. Provision has also been made for bad and 

doubtful debts, all known liabilities and depreciation 

on property, plant & equipment.

ii. Finance income and inance costs

 finance income comprises interest income on 

funds invested and unwinding of discount on 

compensation receivable. Interest income is 

recognised as it accrues in proit or loss, using 

the effective interest method gains on the re-

measurement to fair value of any pre-existing interest 

in an acquiree in a business combination, gains on 

hedging instruments that are recognised in proit 

or loss and reclassiications of net gains previously 

recognised in other comprehensive income. Interest 

income is recognised as it accrues in proit or loss, 

using the effective interest method.

 finance costs comprise interest expense on 

borrowings, unwinding of the discount on provisions 

and corporate guarantee charges, deferred 

consideration, dividends on preference shares 

classiied as liabilities, contingent consideration, 

losses on hedging instruments that are recognised 

in proit or loss and reclassiications of net losses 

previously recognised in other comprehensive 

income.

 borrowing costs that are not directly attributable 

to the acquisition, construction or production of 

a qualifying asset are recognised in proit or loss 

using the effective interest method.

 foreign currency gains and losses on inancial 

assets and inancial liabilities are reported on a 

net basis as either inance income or inance cost 

depending on whether foreign currency movements 

are in a net gain or net loss position.

n) Income tax expense

 Income Tax expense comprises current and deferred 

tax. current tax and deferred tax is recognised in 

proit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a 

business combination, or items recognised directly 

in equity or in other comprehensive income.

i. Current taxation

 current tax is the expected tax payable or 

receivable on the taxable income or loss for the 

year, using tax rates enacted or substantively 

enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment 

to tax payable in respect of previous years. current 

tax payable also includes any tax liability arising 

from the declaration of dividends.

ii. Deferred taxation

 Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet 

liability method, providing for the tax effect of 

temporary differences between the carrying amounts 

of assets and liabilities for inancial reporting 

purposes and the tax base of assets and liabilities, 

which is the amount attributed to those assets and 

liabilities for tax purposes. The amount of deferred 
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tax provided is based on the expected manner of 

realization or settlement of the carrying amount of 

assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted by the 

reporting date.

 Deferred tax assets including those related to 

temporary tax effects of income tax losses and 

credits available to be carried forward, are 

recognized only to the extent that it is probable that 

future taxable proits will be available against which 

the asset can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are 

reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced 

to the extent that it is no longer probable that the 

related tax beneit will be realized.

iii. Tax exposures

 In determining the amount of current and deferred 

tax, the company and the group takes into account 

the impact of uncertain tax positions and whether 

additional taxes and interest may be due. This 

assessment relies on estimates and assumptions and 

may involve a series of judgements about future 

events. new information may become available that 

causes the company and the group to change its 

judgement regarding the adequacy of existing tax 

liabilities; such changes to tax liabilities will impact 

tax expense in the period that such a determination 

is made.

o) Cash low

 Interest paid and dividend paid are classiied as 

inancing cash lows while interest received and 

dividend received are classiied as investing cash 

lows, for the purpose of presentation of cash flow 

statement which has been prepared using the 

“Indirect method”. 

p) Related party transactions

 Disclosure has been made in respect of the 

transactions in which one party has the ability to 

control or exercise signiicant inluence over the 

inancial and operating policies decisions of the 

other, irrespective of whether a price is charged.

5. EARNINGS PER SHARE

 The group presents basic earnings per share (ePs) 

data for its ordinary shares. basic ePs is calculated 

by dividing the proit or loss attributable to ordinary 

shareholders of the company by the weighted 

average number of ordinary shares outstanding 

during the period of the company.

6. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

 All material and important events which occur 

after the Reporting date have been considered and 

disclosed in notes to the inancial statements.

7. DIVIDENDS ON ORDINARY SHARES

 Dividends on ordinary shares are recognized as a 

liability and deducted from equity when they are 

approved by the company’s shareholders. Interim 

dividends are deducted from equity when they are 

declared and are no longer at the discretion of the 

company.

8. PRESENTATION

 Assets and liabilities are grouped by nature and 

listed in an order that relects their relative liquidity 

and maturity pattern.

 Where appropriate, the signiicant accounting 

policies are disclosed in the succeeding notes.

a) Offsetting income and expenses

 Income and expenses are not offset unless required 

or permitted by accounting standards.

b) Offsetting assets and liabilities

 Assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount 

reported in the statement of inancial position only 

where there is;
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•	 a	current	enforceable	legal	right	to	offset	the	

asset and the liability; and

•	 an	intention	to	settle	the	liability	simultaneously

9.  SEGMENT REPORTING

 An operating segment is a component within the 

group and company that engage in business 

activities for which it may earn distinguish revenue 

and expenses for such segment.

 The operating results arising for hoteling business 

of the group and company as a whole is reviewed 

regularly by the company’s general manager to 

make decisions about resource to be allocated and  

to assess its performance. Therefore no operating 

segment within the group and company is 

identiied & reported.

10. NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS NOT 

EFFECTIVE AT THE REPORTING DATE 

 The Institute of chartered Accountants of sri lanka 

has issued the following standards which become 

effective for annual periods beginning after the 

current inancial year. Accordingly, these standards 

have not been applied in preparing these inancial 

statements. The group will be adopting these 

standards when they become effective.

 SLFRS 9 Financial Instruments

 Summary of the requirements

 slfRs 9, published in July 2014, replaces the 

existing guidance in lKAs 39 financial Instruments: 

Recognition and measurement. slfRs 9 includes 

revised guidance on the classiication and 

measurement of inancial instruments, including 

a new expected credit loss model for calculating 

impairment on inancial assets, and the new 

general hedge accounting requirements. It also 

carries forward the guidance on recognition and 

derecognition of inancial instruments from lKAs 39.

 slfRs 9 is effective for annual reporting periods 

beginning on or after 1st January 2018, with early 

adoption permitted.

 Possible impact on consolidated inancial statements

 The group is assessing the potential impact on its 

consolidated inancial statements resulting from the 

application of slfRs 9.

 SLFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

 Summary of the requirements

 slfRs 15 establishes a comprehensive framework 

for determining whether, how much and when 

revenue is recognised. It replaces existing revenue 

recognition guidance, including lKAs 18 Revenue, 

lKAs 11 construction contracts and IfRIc 13 

customer loyalty Programmes.

 IfRs 15 is effective for annual reporting periods 

beginning on or after 1st January 2017, with early 

adoption permitted.

 Possible impact on consolidated financial statements

 The group is assessing the potential impact on its 

consolidated inancial statements resulting from the 

application of slfRs 15.

 However possible impacts are limited.
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For the year ended 31st March

Group Company

2015 2014 2015 2014

11 Revenue
Revenue analysis (net)
Room revenue  259,189  262,074  205,839  208,165 
food and beverage revenue  235,710  178,527  204,657  151,485 
Other revenue  15,356  11,604  15,047  11,073 

 510,255  452,205  425,543  370,723 

12 Other income
Rent income  3,990  3,466  2,038  1,889 
club membership income  1,456  2,299  1,456  2,299 
sundry income  843  1,467  554  1,035 

 6,289  7,232  4,048  5,223 

13 Proit from operations

Proit from operations is stated after charging all expenses 
including the following:
Auditors’ remuneration

- Audit services  469  433  274  245 
- Audit related services  51  91  51  71 
- non-audit services  -  75  -  75 

Depreciation (note 13.1)  39,415  36,582  35,642  32,870 
loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment  96  -  75  - 

Provision/ (reversal of provision) for impairment of trade 
receivable  (126)  955  -  921 
Donations  1,057  4,853  912  1,685 
Professional service costs (note 13.2)  481  690  374  559 
nomination committee fees  50  50  50  50 
Personnel costs (note 13.3)  123,756  110,394  88,284  81,037 
Operating lease expenses  12,617  12,617  -  - 
support service fees  6,399  5,895  5,319  4,871 

13.1 Depreciation

Depreciation included in the statement of proit or loss under the 
following headings:
Direct costs  32,854  31,408  29,929  28,523 
Administrative expenses  6,561  5,174  5,713  4,347 

 39,415  36,582  35,642  32,870 

(All igures in sri lankan Rupees thousands)
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For the year ended 31st March

Group Company

2015 2014 2015 2014

13.2 Professional service cost
legal services  439  412  332  298 
valuation services  34  46  34  29 
consultation fees  -  200  -  200 
Other services  8  32  8  32 

 481  690  374  559 

13.3 Personnel costs
salaries, wages and other related expenses  111,444  99,104  79,235  72,606 
Deined beneit plan cost - employee beneits  2,821  2,669  1,865  1,908 
Deined contribution plan cost - ePf and eTf  9,491  8,621  7,184  6,523 

 123,756  110,394  88,284  81,037 

The above include:
Directors' fees  -  -  -  - 
Directors’ emoluments 14,891  13,146  12,284  10,615 

 14,891  13,146  12,284  10,615 

14 Net inance income
14.1 Finance income

Interest income on placement with banks and government 
securities  6,126  3,048  5,608  3,021 
Dividend income  -  -  4,935  8,945 
unwinding of discounting on compensation receivable  12,639  11,465  12,639  11,465 
gain on foreign exchange transactions  314  469  265  374 

 19,079  14,982  23,447  23,805 

14.2 Finance cost
Interest expenses on loans and borrowings

- On bank borrowings  449  1,900  449  1,900 
- On related party borrowings  367  5,256  367  5,014 

corporate guarantee charges  302  407  302  407 
 1,118  7,563  1,118  7,321 

Net inance income  17,961  7,419  22,329  16,484 

14.3 Unwinding of discounting on compensation receivable

unwinding of discounting on compensation receivable recognized under 'inance income' represents the year on year 
building-up effect of compensation receivable shown at its amortised cost, based on the assumptions which are morefully 
described in note 32.1.1.a as required by the lKAs - 39 financial Instrument - Recognition & measurement. 
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For the year ended 31st March

Group Company

2015 2014 2015 2014

15 Income tax expenses
15.1 Current taxation

current tax expenses (note 15.3)  8,081  4,174 7,055  3,395 
Dividend tax 548 994 - -
(Over)/under provision for previous years  11  (815) -  (196)

 8,640  4,353  7,055  3,199 

15.2 Deferred taxation
On origination and reversal of temporary differences (note 28.1)  5,818  4,423  5,442  4,472 

 14,458  8,776  12,497  7,671 

15.3 Reconciliation between the accounting proit and the proit for 
the tax purposes
Accounting proit before taxation  110,326  75,332  111,229  78,139 
Aggregate disallowable expenses 53,229  47,903 40,637  39,279 
Aggregate allowable expenses (48,152)  (58,331)  (44,688)  (54,103)
notional adjustments arising on application of lKAs/slfRs  (12,337)  (11,057) (12,337)  (11,057)
Proits exempt from income tax  (4,935)  (8,945) (4,935)  (8,945)
Adjustment due to consolidation of inancial statements 4,935  8,400  -  - 
Interest income (6,126)  (3,048) (5,608)  (3,021)
Adjusted proit from operations for tax purposes 96,940  50,254  84,298  40,292 
Interest income 6,663  3,261 6,145  3,234 
Total statutory Income 103,603  53,515  90,443  43,526 
utilization of tax losses (notes 15.4) (36,261)  (18,730)  (31,655)  (15,234)
Taxable income 67,342  34,785  58,788  28,292 
Taxation thereon (note 15.5 a) 8,081  4,174  7,055  3,395 

15.4 Analysis of tax losses
Tax losses brought forward 246,467  261,539  240,826  255,180 
Adjustment on inalization of tax liability  -  3,658  -  880 
utilization of tax losses during the year (note 15.5 b)  (36,261)  (18,730)  (31,655)  (15,234)
Tax losses carried forward  210,206  246,467  209,171  240,826 

15.5 Income tax provisions applicable

(a) In terms of the provisions of the Inland Revenue Act, no. 10 of 2006 and amendment thereto, the taxable proit of 
the company and its subsidiary are liable to income tax at 12%. 

(b) The utilization of tax losses brought forward is restricted to 35% of current year's "statutory Income". unabsorbed 
tax losses can be carried forward indeinitely.

(c) Deferred tax has been computed using a current tax rate of 12% (2014 - 12%) for the company and the group .
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16 Earnings per share

The company’s and the group’s earnings per share is calculated on the proit attributable to the shareholders of Pegasus 
Hotels of ceylon Plc over the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, as required by sri lanka 
Accounting standard (lKAs 33) - “earnings per share”. 

The following relects the earnings and share data used for the computation of “basic earnings per share”.

For the year ended 31st March

Group Company

2015 2014 2015 2014

Amount used as the numerator

Proit attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the parent 
company 95,868 66,556 98,732 70,468

Amount used as the denominator

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding at 
the beginning of the year (In thousands) 30,392 30,392 30,392 30,392
earnings per share (Rs.) 3.15 2.19 3.25 2.32

17 Property, plant and equipment

Freehold
land

Freehold
building

Plant and
machinery

Furniture
and

ittings

Computer
equipment

Equipments Motor
Vehicle

Cutlery
crockery

and
glassware

Capital
work-in

progress

Total as at
31March

2015

Total as at
31March

2014

17.1 Group

Cost/Valuation

balance as at the beginning of the year 504,332 531,678 111,747 123,022 9,100 32,163 12,044 3,389 - 1,327,475 1,267,564

Additions during the year - 1,094 573 2,081 1,090 6,527 - 1,374 13,467 26,206 61,475

Disposals during the year - - (260) - (1,066) (671) - (903) - (2,900) (1,564)

balance as at the end of the year 504,332 532,772 112,060 125,103 9,124 38,019 12,044 3,860 13,467 1,350,781 1,327,475

Depreciation

balance as at the beginning of the year - 24,252 62,091 36,850 8,156 19,557 2,717 2,082 - 155,705 120,162

charge for the year - 9,409 6,576 15,002 589 4,103 3,011 725 - 39,415 36,582

On disposals during the year - - (56) - (1,042) (507) - (592) - (2,197) (1,039)

balance as at the end of the year - 33,661 68,611 51,852 7,703 23,153 5,728 2,215 - 192,923 155,705

net book value as at the end of the year 504,332 499,111 43,449 73,251 1,421 14,866 6,316 1,645 13,467 1,157,858 1,171,770
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Freehold
land

Freehold
building

Plant and
machinery

Furniture
and

ittings

Computer
equipment

Equipments Motor
Vehicle

Cutlery
crockery

and
glassware

Capital
work-in

progress

Total as at
31March

2015

Total as at
31March

2014

17.2 Company
Cost/valuation
balance as at the beginning of the year 504,332 506,579 97,820 109,621 8,776 22,487 12,044 2,529 - 1,264,188 1,205,566

Additions during the year - 669 - 1,946 1,089 6,258 - 1,288 13,467 24,717 60,092

Disposals during the year - - - - (1,066) (542) - (794) - (2,402) (1,470)

balance as at the end of the year 504,332 507,248 97,820 111,567 8,799 28,203 12,044 3,023 13,467 1,286,503 1,264,188

Depreciation

balance as at the beginning of the year - 14,936 52,575 28,192 8,156 12,874 2,717 1,576 - 121,026 89,157

charge for the year - 8,127 5,896 14,127 589 3,255 3,011 637 - 35,642 32,870

Disposals during the year - - - - (1,042) (453) - (483) - (1,978) (1,001)

balance as at the end of the year - 23,063 58,471 42,319 7,703 15,676 5,728 1,730 - 154,690 121,026

net book value as at the end of the year 504,332 484,185 39,349 69,248 1,096 12,527 6,316 1,293 13,467 1,131,813 1,143,162

17.3 freehold land and freehold building of the company were last revalued by mr. K. Arthur Perera, A.m.I.v (sri lanka), 
an independent professional valuer as at 31st march 2012. The details of carrying values of revalued assets and the 
carrying value if such assets were carried at historical cost less depreciation are as follows;

Property and location Asset category Method of valuation Carrying value 
of revalued 

assets if carried 
at historical cost

Carrying 
value of 

revalued 
assets 2015

Carrying 
value of 

revalued 
assets 2014

Pegasus Reef Hotel, Wattala. freehold land market approach  5,250  504,332  504,332 
building market approach  276,364  484,185  491,643 

As at 31st March

Group Company

2015 2014 2015 2014

17.4 Analysis of Capital work-in-progress
freehold building 12,957 - 12,957  - 
equipments 480  - 480  - 
furniture and ittings  30  -  30  - 

13,467  - 13,467  - 

17.5 The land where the equity Hotels limited, Polonnaruwa is located, is on a 30 year lease from 01st January 1997 to 31st 
December 2026. consequent to a request for an extension by the company sri lanka Tourism Authority has agreed to 
extent lease for another 30 years effective from April 2008. During the lease period, the company has the right to use 
the land to construct and operate a tourist hotel, approved and categorized by the sri lanka Tourist board.
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17.6 Details of fully depreciated assets in property, plant and equipment

As at 31st March

Group Company

2015 2014 2015 2014

Plant and machinery 25,442  25,335 17,983  17,876 
equipment, furniture & ittings 17,258  17,256 11,131  11,129 
computer equipment  4,917  5,310 4,900  5,393 

47,617  47,901 34,014  34,398 

17.7 Capitalization	of	borrowing	costs	in	to	property,	plant	and	equipment
no borrowing costs were capitalized during the year for property, plant and equipment (2014 - nil) for the company 
and the group respectively.

17.8 Restrictions on title of property, plant and equipment
There are no restrictions on title of the property, plant and equipment held by the company and the group, except for as 
disclosed in note 17.10.

17.9 Property, plant and equipment pledged as security for liabilities
There are no items of property, plant and equipment pledged as security for liabilities as at the repotting date, for the 
company and the group.

17.10 Acquisition of land by the government of Sri Lanka
During the inancial year 2008/09, the government acquired approximately 1,605 perches of the land owned by the 
company, out of which 353.89 perches of land was subject to supreme court order as explained below. The market 
value of the said net land extent (1,251 perches) as at the date of acquisition amounting to Rs. 187,800,000/- has 
been removed from the value of the freehold land classiied under the property, plant, and equipment in the statement of 
financial Position of the company. The removal of the said land has been accounted for as a disposal of an asset in the 
inancial statements of 2008/09.

The company iled a fundamental rights application in the supreme court regarding the acquisition of approximately 
353.89 perches of land (described as mangrove) included in the above said acquisition. As per the supreme court ruling 
dated 20th november 2008, the said land is to be returned to the company on the completion of the construction work 
of the isheries harbour project.

On 15th march 2011, the sri lanka navy has approached the fisheries Harbour corporation through which they have 
requested for a portion of 80 perches from and out of the said 353.89 perches in order to establish a coast guard unit. 
The company is expected to regain title to the balance 273.89 perches and make an additional claim for compensation 
for the said 80 perches, after referring the said request to the supreme court. until determination of the aforesaid legal 
steps, the entire land extent in question (353.89 perches) will continue to be accounted in the statement of financial 
Position of the company under property, plant and equipment at the market value.

Accordingly the carrying value of the said land, (353.89 perches) amounting to Rs. 52,950,000/- (2014 -  
Rs. 52,950,000/-) as at the reporting date has not been removed from the property, plant and equipment.
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As at 31st March

Group Company

2015 2014 2015 2014

18 Intangible assets
18.1 Goodwill on consolidation

balance as at the beginning of the year  115,287  115,287  -  - 
Acquisition during the year - - - -
Impairment - - - -
balance as at the end of the year  115,287  115,287  -  - 

18.2 goodwill is allocated to cash generating units (cgu) operative within the group. When testing for impairment on 
goodwill, the recoverable amount of a cash generating unit is determined on the basis of fair value less cost to sell and 
value-in-use, whichever is higher.

The fair value less cost to sell is computed based on earnings multiples of comparable companies (listed), adjusted to 
relect the liquidity. value-in-use calculations are cash low projections based on inancial budgets, which are approved by 
the management, typically covering a ive year period. The cash lows were discounted at an appropriate discount rate. 
Accordingly there is no indication of an impairment on goodwill on acquisition of equity Hotels limited.

18.3 Accounting software included under intangible assets is fully amortized as at 31st march 2015 (2014 - nil).
 

As at 31st March

Group Company

2015 2014 2015 2014

19 Investment in subsidiary 
Investment in subsidiary (note 19.1)  -  -  110,223  110,223 

 -  -  110,223  110,223 

19.1 Details of investment in subsidiary

No. of
shares

Cost as at
31st March

2015

No. of
shares

Cost as at
31st March

2014

equity Hotels limited  685,469  110,223  685,469  110,223 
Total investment in subsidiary  110,223  110,223 

The company owns 99.99% of the stated capital of equity Hotels limited, accordingly there is no non controlling 
Interest (ncI) in the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31st March

Group Company

2015 2014 2015 2014

20 Compensation receivable
balance as at the beginning of the year  109,906 98,441  109,906 98,441
unwinding of discount on compensation receivable 12,639  11,465 12,639  11,465
balance as at the end of the year  122,545  109,906  122,545  109,906
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20.1 The government of sri lanka acquired approximately 1,251 perches of land owned by the company under section 38 
provision (a) of the land Acquisition Act, no. 28 of 1964 by gazette notiication dated 14th may 2008 for the public 
purpose of a isheries harbour project. The Divisional secretary called for claim of compensation in response to which 
company submitted a claim of compensation for the compulsory acquisition of the said land on 16th July 2008. The inal 
claim stands at Rs. 563mn taking into account the market value of the property, potential economic value lost for hotel 
expansion and the nuisance value that will be created for hotel operation by the said project. However, as a matter of 
prudence the company has accounted for the compensation receivable of Rs. 189.5mn in the inancial statements based 
only on the market value and related costs supported by a professional valuation dated 4th April 2009 conducted  
mr. K Arthur Perera, A.m.I.v.(sri lanka), valuer and consultant.

A valuation was carried out by mr. K. Arthur Perera as at 31st march 2012 and according to the valuation, the said 
acquired property is valued at Rs. 250.4mn.

no adjustment has been made to the compensation receivable on a prudent basis, however, this will further justify the 
company’s compensation claim on the property. As at the reporting date, company has not received any conirmation 
from the Divisional secretary on the value determination of the said claim, due to the court case described in note 31.3.

The amounts recognised in the inancial statements represents the amortised cost of the said receivable as at the 
respective reporting dates, based on the assumptions which are more fully described in note 32.1.1.a. An amount 
of Rs. 12.6mn (2014 - Rs. 11.5mn) has been recognized in the consolidated statement of Proit or loss and Other 
comprehensive Income on account of unwinding of discount on compensation receivable.

As at 31st March

Group Company

2015 2014 2015 2014

21 Inventories
food  3,098  3,129  2,294  2,171 
beverage  1,726  1,455  1,051  744 
engineering spares  1,572  1,648  1,320  1,235 
linen  3,940  4,102  2,106  3,179 
Others  2,725  2,502  2,401  1,929 

 13,061  12,836  9,172  9,258 

22 Trade and other receivables
Financial
Trade receivables (note 22.1)  41,401  41,951  35,200  34,287 
Other receivables  1,806  2,634  1,484  1,062 
loans given to company oficers (note 22.2)  156  512  141  497 

 43,363  45,097  36,825  35,846 

Non-inancial
Advances and prepaid expenses  2,802  2,697  2,230  2,425 
fair valuation of corporate guarantees  -  302  -  302 

 2,802  2,999  2,230  2,727 
 46,165  48,096  39,055  38,573 
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As at 31st March

Group Company

2015 2014 2015 2014

22.1 Trade receivables
Trade debtors  42,322  42,998  36,121  35,208 
less: Provision for impairment of trade receivables  (921)  (1,047)  (921)  (921)

 41,401  41,951  35,200  34,287 

22.2 Loans given to company oficers
balance as at the beginning of the year  512  243  497  188 
loans granted during the year  1,222  1,624  694  1,149 
Amount recovered during the year  (1,578)  (1,355)  (1,050)  (840)
balance as at the end of the year  156  512  141  497 

23 Cash and cash equivalents
cash at bank and in hand  31,092  28,714  29,533  26,697 
Placements with banking institutions  10,387  5,027  -  - 
Placements in government securities  93,538  39,336  93,538  39,336 

 135,017  73,077  123,071  66,033 

24 Stated capital
Issued and fully paid
At the beginning of the year (30,391,538 shares)  515,170  515,170  515,170  515,170 
At the end of the year (30,391,538 shares)  515,170  515,170  515,170  515,170 

25 Capital reserve
Revaluation reserve  659,955  659,955  659,955  659,955 
capital accretion reserve  15,144  15,144  15,144  15,144 

 675,099  675,099  675,099  675,099 

25.1 Revaluation reserve
The revaluation reserve represents the surplus arising from the revaluation of freehold land and building of the company 
and the group. A subsequent decline in the carrying amount of the asset will be offset against a previous increase for the 
same asset which was credited to the revaluation surplus. A further decline is recognized as an expense in the statement 
of Proit or loss and Other comprehensive Income. An increase on revaluation relating to a previous decrease in carrying 
amount recognized as an expense, is credited to income, to the extent it offsets the previously recorded expense in the 
consolidated statement of Proit or loss and Other comprehensive Income.

25.2 Capital accretion reserve
capital accretion reserve represents the amounts set aside by the Directors to meet any contingencies.
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As at 31st March

Group Company

2015 2014 2015 2014

26 Revenue reserves
general reserve  176  176  176  176 
Retained earnings  281,976  202,379  251,844  169,013 

 282,152  202,555  252,020  169,189 

26.1 General reserves
general reserves represents the amounts set aside by the directors to meet any contingencies.

As at 31st March

Group Company

2015 2014 2015 2014

27 Loans and borrowings
27.1 Non-current liabilities

secured bank loans  -  7,878  -  7,878 
 -  7,878  -  7,878 

27.2 Current liabilities
current portion of secured bank loans  -  8,568  -  8,568 

 -  8,568  -  8,568 
 -  16,446  -  16,446 

As at 31st March

2015 2014

Currency Nominal 
interest 

 rate

Year of 
maturity

Face value Carrying 
amount

Face value Carrying 
amount

27.3 Details of long-term borrowings 
- Group
Pegasus Hotels of Ceylon PLC
commercial bank lKR 9% 2014  -  -  16,446  16,446 

 -  -  16,446  16,446 

27.3.1 The long-term borrowings of the company have been obtained from commercial bank of ceylon Plc at concessionary 
rates of interest, under a scheme of funding provided to "Tsunami" affected hotels.

27.3.2 carson cumberbatch Plc, the parent company, has provided a corporate guarantee to commercial bank of ceylon Plc, 
in securing the borrowing facility as disclosed in note 27.3.
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As at 31st March

Group Company

2015 2014 2015 2014

28 Deferred tax (Asset) / Liability
balance as at the beginning of the year  28,741  24,318  27,572  23,100 
charge for the year (note 28.1)  5,818  4,423  5,442  4,472 
balance as at the end of year  34,559  28,741  33,014  27,572 

28.1 Charge for the year
Arising from;
Property, plant and equipment  1,278  3,035  1,339  3,024 
employee beneits  189  (432)  304  (275)
Provisions  -  11  -  - 
Tax losses  4,351  1,809  3,799  1,723 

 5,818  4,423  5,442  4,472 

28.2 Deferred tax assets
Tax effect on employee beneits  1,499  1,688  809  1,113 
Tax effect on tax losses  25,225  29,576  25,100  28,899 
Total deferred tax assets  26,724  31,264  25,909  30,012 

28.3 Deferred tax liability 
Tax effect on property, plant and equipment  61,283  60,005  58,923  57,584 
Total deferred tax liabilities  61,283  60,005  58,923  57,584 
Net deferred tax liability  34,559  28,741  33,014  27,572 

29 Employee beneits

29.1 The movement in the liabilities recognized in the statement of 
inancial position is as follows
balance as at the beginning of the year  14,063  10,465  9,278  6,986 
Provision for the year (note 29.2)  3,896  3,844  2,570  2,538 
Payments made during the year  (5,464)  (246)  (5,109)  (246)
balance as at the end of the year  12,495  14,063  6,739  9,278 

29.2 Provision for the year

The amounts recognized in the consolidated statement of Proit 
or loss is as follows
current service cost  1,415  1,622  937  1,209 
Interest cost  1,406  1,047  928  699 

 2,821  2,669  1,865  1,908 

The amount recognized in the statement of other comprehensive 
income are as follows
Actuarial losses  1,075  1,175  705  630 

 1,075  1,175  705  630 
Provision for the year  3,896  3,844  2,570  2,538 
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The employee beneits as at 31st march 2015 amounting to Rs. 6,739,100/- and Rs. 12,495,402/- (2014 –  
Rs. 9,278,019/- and Rs. 14,063,146/-) for the company and the group respectively are estimated based on an 
actuarial valuation carried out by mr. m. Poopalanathan of messrs Actuarial and management consultants (Pvt) ltd.  
As recommended by the sri lanka Accounting standards (lKAs 19) - “employee beneits”, the “Projected unit credit “ 
(Puc) method has been used in this valuation.

The principal assumptions used are:
 - Rate of discount 10% p.a.
 - Rate of pay increase 10% -12% p.a.
 - Retirement age 55 years
 - mortality A 67/70 mortality table, issued by the Institute of  

Actuaries, london was used. 
 - Withdrawal rate 5% for age up to 49 and zero thereafter.
 - The company is a going concern.

29.3 Sensitivity analysis 
A change of 1% in discount rate & future salary growth rates at the end of the reporting period would have increased / 
(decreased) equity and proit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, remain 
constant.

Group Company

Proit / (loss) Proit / (loss)

1% Increase 1% Decrease 1% Increase 1% Decrease

Discount rate  (11,106)  12,891  (6,249)  7,295 
future salary growth rates  (12,934)  11,054  (7,317)  6,222 

29.4 The employee beneit obligation has not been externally funded.

As at 31st March

Group Company

2015 2014 2015 2014

30 Trade and other payables
Financial
Trade payables  18,243  14,276  14,034  10,572 
Other payables  17,421  15,540  10,399  10,182 
Amounts due to related companies (note 33.5)  -  19,949  -  19,949 

 35,664  49,765  24,433  40,703 

Non inancial
Deposits and advances  9,257  10,088  7,793  8,568 
Provisions and accrued expenses  19,888  15,389  16,401  12,525 

 29,145  25,477  24,194  21,093 
 64,809  75,242  48,627  61,796 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(All igures in sri lankan Rupees thousands)

As at 31st March

Group Company

2015 2014 2015 2014

31 Commitment and contingencies
31.1 Capital commitments

Approved and contracted for 31,406  - 31,406  - 

31.2 Financial commitments
The company and the group do not have any signiicant inancial commitments as at the reporting date.

31.3 Contingent liabilities
A case has been iled against the company by an individual in the District court of negombo seeking a declaratory title 
from court stating that he is co-owner of 127.5 perches of the land that belonged to Pegasus Hotels of ceylon Plc. The 
outcome of the matter is still pending. However, the company is conident that it can establish title to the said land. In any 
case, the claimed land extent falls within the 1,251 perches of land acquired by the government for the isheries harbour 
project and detailed under note 17.10.

There were no contingent liabilities other than those disclosed above as at the reporting date.

32 Financial instruments
Financial risk management - overview
The group has exposure to the following risks arising from inancial instruments: 

- Credit risk
- Market risk
- Liquidity risk

This note presents information about the group’s exposure to each of the above risks, the group’s supervision, policies 
and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the group’s management of capital.

Risk management framework

The company’s board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the group’s risk 
management framework. The board of Directors has appointed carsons management services (Private) limited, the 
management company, to develop and monitor the group’s risk management policies and reports regularly to the board 
of Directors on its activities. 

The group’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the group, to set 
appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems 
are reviewed regularly to relect changes in market conditions and the group’s activities. The group, through its training 
and management policies and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which 
all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Audit committee of carson cumberbatch Plc, the parent company, oversees how management monitors compliance 
with the group’s risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management 
framework in relation to the risks faced by the group. The Audit committee is assisted in its supervision role by Internal 
Audit. The Internal Audit undertakes both regular and ad-hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the 
results of which are reported to the Audit committee.
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32.1 Credit risk

credit risk is the risk of inancial loss to the group, if a customer or counterparty to a inancial instrument fails to meet its 
contractual obligations, and arises principally from the group’s receivables from customers, placements in deposits with 
banking institutions and in government securities.

32.1.1 Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of inancial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at 
the end of the reporting period was as follows.

As at 31st March

Group

2015 2014

compensation receivable (note 20)  122,545  109,906 
Trade and other receivables (note 22)  43,363  45,097 
cash and cash equivalents (note 23)  135,017  73,077 

 300,925  228,080 

a) Compensation receivable
As disclosed in detailed in note 20.1, the company has accounted for a value of Rs.189.5mn as compensation 
receivable from the government of sri lanka, on account of the land acquisition referred to therein, which is based on the 
market value of the property, potential economic value lost for hotel expansion and the nuisance value that will be created 
for hotel operation by the said project as at the date of acquisition, based on a professional valuation dated 4th April 
2009 conducted mr. K Arthur Perera, A.m.I.v.(sri lanka), valuer and consultant.

A certain individual has iled a land action case in District court of negombo (as disclosed in note 31.3) in 2006 which 
is still under hearing. even if a ruling is made at District court, a further two appeal options are available for both parties 
at Provincial High courts and to the supreme court.

under these circumstances, even if a valuation is determined by the government, such value will not be disclosed till the 
court case has come to a inality.

based on possible outcomes of the said determination, connected developments that may arise thereafter and considering 
the pattern in which similar proceedings / events were resolved, the company is of the view that it will take up to 8-10 
years to bring this matter to a conclusion.

Accordingly, the company has recognized the said compensation receivable at its amortised cost; the underlying 
assumptions used in such assessment is detailed below.

expected timing of cash lows year 2018
Discount rate used The weighted average deposit rate (WADR) at the date of acquisition (11.5%)

This treatment is required as per the provision of lKAs 39 - financial Instrument - Recognition and Presentation.



P
E
G

A
S
U

S
 H

O
TE

LS
 O

F 
C

E
Y
LO

N
 P

LC
 

82

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

b) Trade receivables

The group’s exposure to credit risk is inluenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However, 
management also considers the demographics of the group’s customer base, including the default risk of the industry in 
which customers operate, as these factors may have an inluence on credit risk. 

The group has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analysed individually for creditworthiness 
before the group’s standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. credit limits are established for 
each customer, which represents the maximum open amount without requiring speciic approval; these limits are reviewed 
annually. 

In monitoring customer credit risk, customers are grouped according to their credit characteristics, including whether 
they are an individual or legal entity, whether they are a corporate customer or tour operator, and evaluate to identify 
existence of previous inancial dificulties. Trade and other receivables relate mainly to the group’s corporate and tour 
operator segments. customers that are graded as ‘high risk’ are placed on a restricted customer list, monitored and future 
sales are made on a prepayment basis.

The group establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade and 
other receivables being a speciic loss component that relates to individually signiicant exposures.

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade receivables at the end of the reporting period by type of segment was as 
follows.

As at 31st March

Group

2015 2014

corporate customers  6,428  3,613 
Tour operators  33,863  37,108 
Others  1,110  1,230 

 41,401  41,951 

Impairment of receivables
The aging of trade receivables at the end of the reporting period that were not impaired was as follows  

As at 31st March

Group

2015 2014

Neither past due nor impaired
1–30 days  23,950  19,941 
31–90 days  15,332  17,402 
91–120 days  1,387  1,525 
121 above  732  3,083 

 41,401  41,951 

An allowance for impairment of Rs. 0.92mn (2014 - Rs. 1.05mn) has been made in respect of trade and other 
receivables, as at the year end. 

The group believes that the unimpaired amounts that are past due by more than 90 days are still collectible in full, based 
on historic payment behavior and extensive analysis of customers.

(All igures in sri lankan Rupees thousands)
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c) Cash and cash equivalents

The group held cash and cash equivalents of Rs. 135mn at 31st march 2015 (2014: Rs.73.1mn), which represents its 
maximum credit exposure on these assets. The cash and cash equivalents are held with bank and inancial institution 
counterparties, which are rated AAA(lka) to AA−(lka), based on fitch Ratings.

Placement in government securities primarily comprise of short term repo investments, extending to a period less than 3 
months.

32.2 Liquidity risk
liquidity risk is the risk that the group will encounter dificulty in meeting the obligations associated with its inancial 
liabilities that are to be settled by delivering cash or another inancial asset. The group’s approach to managing liquidity 
is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have suficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both 
normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the group’s reputation.

32.2.1 The following are the remaining contractual maturities of inancial liabilities at the end of the reporting period.

As at 31st March 2015

Contractual cash lows

Carrying
amount

Total 2 months
or less

2-12
months

1-2 years 2-5 years More than
5 years

Non-derivative inancial liabilities
Trade payables 18,243 18,243 18,243 - - - -
Other payables 17,421 17,421 17,421 - - - -

35,664 35,664 35,664 - - - -

As at 31st March 2014

Contractual cash lows

Carrying 
amount

Total 2 months 
or less

2-12 
months

1-2 years 2-5 years More than 
5 years

Non-derivative inancial liabilities
loans and borrowings  16,446  16,446  1,428  7,140  7,878  -  - 
Trade payables  14,276  14,276  14,276  -  -  -  - 
Other payables  15,540  15,540  15,540  -  -  -  - 
Amount due to related parties (note 33.5)  19,949  19,949  19,949  -  -  -  - 

 66,211  66,211  51,193  7,140  7,878  -  - 

The gross inlows/(outlows) disclosed in the previous table represent the contractual undiscounted cash lows relating to 
non-derivative inancial liabilities and which are usually not closed out before contractual maturity.
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32.2.2 Management of liquidity risk
The group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have suficient liquidity to 
meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking 
damage to the group’s reputation.

The group maintains a portion of its assets in highly liquid form; placements with banking institutions and in government 
securities in order to meet its contractual obligations during the normal course of its operations. As at the reporting date, 
the group maintains 'cash and cash equivalents' amounting to Rs.135mn (2014 - Rs. 73.1mn)

The group monitors the level of expected cash inlows on trade and other receivables together with expected cash 
outlows on trade and other payables. This excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably 
be predicted, such as natural disasters.

The group has approved and unused overdraft facility amounting to Rs. 2.5mn as at 31st march 2015.

In addition, the group have access to short-term inancing facilities extended from the parent company, carson 
cumberbatch Plc, if required.

32.3 Market risk
market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates which will affect 
the group’s income or the value of its holdings of inancial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to 
manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

32.3.1 Currency risk
foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash lows of a inancial instrument will luctuate, due to 
changes in foreign exchange rates. The group, as at the reporting date, do not hold 'financial instruments' denominated 
in currencies other than its functional / reporting currency, hence do not get exposed to currency risk arising from 
translation of such balances in to the functional / reporting currency, which is sri lankan Rupees.

However, the group engages in transactions associated with foreign currencies in its ordinary course of operations, 
hence exposed to 'currency risk'.

Across the industry, the hotel rates targeting the foreign tourists are quoted in us Dollar terms and contracted in advance 
with the tour operators - which constitute a signiicant volume of business to the group (note 32.1.1). A luctuation in the 
exchange rates will have an impact over the amounts realized in the local currency. Operations concerned with the local 
counterparties (corporates and others) do not carry a currency risk exposure, on the basis that those are transacted in sri 
lanka Rupee terms.

The company monitors luctuations in foreign exchange rates and takes precautionary measures to revise its rates / 
quotes on a regular basis, in an attempt to mitigate the exposure to currency risk arising from its transactions with tour 
operator segment.

32.3.2 Interest rate risk
The groups interest bearing inancial assets / liabilities are factored on variable rates of interest, hence the group’s 
exposure to interest rate risk is material.

Proile
At the end of the reporting period the interest rate proile of the group’s interest-bearing inancial instruments as reported 
to the management of the group was as follows.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(All igures in sri lankan Rupees thousands)
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As at 31st March

Group

2015 2014

Variable rate instruments
financial assets  103,925  44,363 
financial liabilities  -  (19,949)

 103,925  24,414 

Fixed rate instruments
financial liabilities  -  (16,446)

 103,925  7,968 

cash low sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments.

A change of 1% in interest rates at the end of the reporting period would have increased / (decreased) equity and proit 
or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, 
remain constant.

Group

 Proit / (loss) 

 1%
Increase 

 1%
Decrease 

31st March 2015   
variable rate instruments  1,039  (1,039)

31st March 2014
variable rate instruments  244  (244)

32.4 Accounting classiications and fair values

financial instruments are measured subsequently either at fair value or amortised cost. The “summary of signiicant 
accounting policies” describes how the classes of inancial instruments are measured, and how income and expenses, 
including fair value gains and losses, are recognized. The following table analyses the fair value of inancial instruments 
together with the carrying amounts shown in the statement of inancial position. 
The group does not designate any of its inancial assets / liabilities at fair value, hence a classiication between fair 
value hierarchy do not apply.

32.5 Fair value vs carrying amounts

31st March 2015

Trading Held to 
maturity

Loans and 
receivables

Available 
for sale

Other 
inancial 
liabilities

Total 
carrying 
amount

Fair value

compensation receivable  -  -  122,545  -  -  122,545  122,545 
Trade and other receivables  -  -  43,363  -  -  43,363  43,363 
cash and cash equivalents  -  -  135,017  -  -  135,017  135,017 

 -  -  300,925  -  -  300,925  300,925 

loans and borrowings  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Trade and other payables  -  -  -  -  35,664  35,664  35,664 

 -  -  -  -  35,664  35,664  35,664 
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31st March 2014

Trading Held to 
maturity

Loans and 
receivables

Available 
for sale

Other 
inancial 
liabilities

Total 
carrying 
amount

Fair value

compensation receivable  -  -  109,906  -  -  109,906  109,906 
Trade and other receivables  -  -  45,097  -  -  45,097  45,097 
cash and cash equivalents  -  -  73,077  -  -  73,077  73,077 

 -  -  228,080  -  -  228,080  228,080 

loans and borrowings  -  -  -  -  16,446  16,446  16,446 
Trade and other payables  -  -  -  -  49,765  49,765  49,765 

 -  -  -  -  66,211  66,211  66,211 

financial assets and liabilities with shorter maturities (less than one year) is assumed to have a fair value similar to its 
carrying value.

compensation receivable is carried at amortized cost as describes in note 32.1.1.(a). 

33 Related party transactions
The company carries out transactions in the ordinary course of its business on an arm’s length basis with parties who are 
deined as related parties in sri lanka Accounting standard (lKAs 24) - “Related party disclosures ”, the details of which 
are reported below.

33.1 Parent and ultimate controlling party
In the opinion of the Directors, carson cumberbatch Plc is the parent company of Pegasus Hotels of ceylon Plc and 
bukit Darah Plc is the ultimate parent and controlling entity of Pegasus Hotels of ceylon Plc.

33.2 Transactions with Key Management Personnel (KMP)
According to sri lanka Accounting standard (lKAs 24) - “Related party disclosures”, Key management personnel (KmP) 
are those having authority and responsibility for planning and controlling the activities of the entity. Accordingly, the 
Directors of the company and its parent company (including executive and non-executive directors) and their immediate 
family members have been classiied as Key management Personnel of the company.

As at 31st March

Group Company

2015 2014 2015 2014

33.2.1 Key management personnel compensation
short-term employee beneits 11,588  12,821 8,981  10,362 
Post-employment beneits  -  325  -  253 
Termination beneits 3,262  - 3,262  - 
non-cash beneits 41  -  41  - 
Other long-term beneits  -  -  -  - 

 14,891  13,146  12,284  10,615 

no other transactions have taken place during the year, except as disclosed above, between the company/group and its KmP.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(All igures in sri lankan Rupees thousands)
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33.3 Group entities

Name of the subsidiary

% equity interest

2015 2014

equity Hotels limited 99.9% 99.9%

33.4 Transactions with Related Companies  

Name and the 
nature of the 
relationship 

Name/s of the 
common Director/s 

Nature of 
transactions

Value of the transaction

Group Company

2015 2014 2015 2014

Parent company

carson 
cumberbatch Plc

H. selvanathan

m. selvanathan

D.c.R. gunawardena

Interest on short-
term advances 
obtained

 367  5,256  367  5,014 

settlements made 
on short-term 
advances provided

19,949  31,567 19,949  31,567 

Subsidiary

equity Hotels limited D.c.R. gunawardena

P.m. Withana  
( Resigned w.e.f. 
31st January 2015)

Reimbursement of 
expenses received

 -  -  5,510  3,227 

Disposal of 
property, plant and 
equipment

 -  -  -  82 

Dividend received  -  4,935  8,945 

Fellow subsidiaries

carsons 
management 
services (Private) 
limited

(cmsl)

H. selvanathan

m. selvanathan

K.c.n. fernando

(Alternate for  
m. selvanathan) 

Reimbursement of 
expenses paid.

 22,721  16,803  22,721  13,846 

computer charges  150  150  150  150 
secretarial fees  450  360  360  300 

support service fee 
expenses 

 6,399  5,895  5,319  4,871 

Internal audit 
services

 1,866  1,770  1,866  1,770 

- Related company lending (including short - term advances) have been charged interest at AWPlR+1%

- support service fee and other expenses charged are based on the respective services provided by cmsl as per the 
service agreements signed between companies on an arm’s length basis.  
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further to the above, carson cumberbatch Plc has provided corporate guarantees to the company and its subsidiary, as 
detailed below.

Company Purpose
Outstanding balance

2015 2014

Pegasus Hotels of ceylon Plc Term loan facility from commercial bank of ceylon Plc  -  16,446 
equity Hotels limited Overdraft facility from commercial bank of ceylon Plc  -  - 

As at 31st March

Group Company

2015 2014 2015 2014

33.5 Amounts due to related companies
carson cumberbatch Plc  -  19,949  -  19,949 

 -  19,949  -  19,949 

34 Dividend per share
Dividend paid 15,196 15,196
Dividend proposed * 15,196 15,196
Dividend per share 0.50 0.50

*The proposed dividend is subject to approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming Annual general meeting and 
according to the sri lanka Accounting standard (lKAs 11) - "events after the reporting period", the liability has not been 
provided for in the inancial statements.

35 Events after the reporting date.
After satisfying the solvency test in accordance with section 57 of the company's Act, no. 7 of 2007, the Directors have 
recommended a payment of irst and inal dividend of Rs. 0.50/- per ordinary share for the year ended 31st march 
2015 amounting to Rs. 15,195,769 /- (2014 - 15,195,769 /-) which is to be approved at the forthcoming Annual 
general meeting. In accordance with sri lanka Accounting standard (lKAs 10) - "events after the reporting period" this 
proposed irst and inal dividend has not been recognized as a liability as at 31st march 2015.

subsequent to the reporting period, no circumstances have arisen which would require adjustments to or disclosure in the 
inancial statements, other than the above.

36 Directors’ responsibility
The board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the inancial statements. This is more fully 
described under the relevant clause in the Directors’ Report.

37 Other matters
The interim budget proposal presented by the minister of finance on 29th January 2015 and the pursuant bill presented 
to the Parliament on 30th march 2015, impose a one off tax of 25% on taxable proits for the year of assessment 
2013/14 on any company or each company in a group of companies, if the company’s / group’s proit before income 
tax exceeds Rs. 2,000mn. 

The consolidated proit before tax of carson cumberbatch Plc, the parent company of Pegasus Hotels of ceylon Plc, 
exceeds the said threshold of Rs. 2,000mn. Accordingly, as per the provisions of the bill presented to parliament the 
company’s liability is estimated at approximately Rs. 6.7mn.

The liability will be recognized in the inancial statements when the bill is enacted and the required entries will be passed 
in the inancial statements.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(All igures in sri lankan Rupees thousands)
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SLFRS/LKAS SLAS

For the year ended / As at 31st March
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Group Group Group Group Group

Trading Results
Revenue  510,255  452,205  493,184  425,975  289,104 
Proit from operations  92,365  67,913  151,487  131,205  69,475 
net inance income / (cost)  17,961  7,419  6,687  4,759  (10,359)
Proit from operations after inance cost  110,326  75,332  158,174  135,964  59,116 
Income taxation  (14,458)  (8,776)  (16,211)  (15,231)  (10,266)
Proit for the year  95,868  66,556  141,963  120,733  48,850 
Shareholders’ Funds
stated capital  515,170  515,170  515,170  404,241  398,889 
Reserves  957,251  877,654  827,469  700,702  607,552 
shareholders’ funds  1,472,421  1,392,824  1,342,639  1,104,943  1,006,441 
Assets Employed
Property, plant and equipment  1,157,858  1,171,770  1,147,402  1,079,292  907,467 
Intangible assets  115,287  115,287  115,287  115,287  115,287 
Deferred tax assets -  -  -  -  2,304 
compensation receivable  122,545  109,906  98,441  88,264  189,463 
non current assets  1,395,690  1,396,963  1,361,130  1,282,843  1,214,521 
current assets  194,243  134,009  144,370  150,141  101,711 
current liabilities  (70,458)  (87,466)  (111,632)  (277,066)  (269,699)
Working capital  123,785  46,543  32,738  (126,925)  (167,988)
Assets employed  1,519,475  1,443,506  1,393,868  1,155,918  1,046,533 

Non-current liabilities
loans and borrowings  -  (7,878)  (16,446)  (25,014)  (34,182)
employee beneits  (12,495)  (14,063)  (10,465)  (8,280)  (5,910)
Deferred tax liability   (34,559)  (28,741)  (24,318)  (17,681)  - 
Total non-current liabilities (47,054) (50,682) (51,229) (50,975) (40,092)
net assets  1,472,421  1,392,824  1,342,639  1,104,943  1,006,441 
Proitability Ratios
net proit margin (%) 19% 15% 29% 28% 17%
Return on shareholders’ funds (%)* 7% 5% 11% 11% 5%
Liquidity Ratios
current ratio (times)  2.76  1.53  1.29  (1.85)  (2.66)
Debt equity (%)  -  2.61  5.70  19.86  25.77 
Investor Ratios
earnings per share (Rs.)**  3.15  2.19  4.68  4.39  1.78 
Dividend per share (Rs.) 0.50  0.50  0.50  0.50  0.30 
net assets per share (Rs.)  48.45  45.83  44.18  40.40  36.80 
market price per share (Rs.) 41.00  37.00  36.90  38.00  71.00 
Dividend payout (%) 15.87  22.83  10.68  11.39  16.85 
Dividend yield (%) 1.22 1.35 1.36 1.32 0.42
Hotel Operations
Occupancy (%)  49 47 58 59 59

Notes 
* Proit attributable to shareholders of the company divided by shareholders’ funds (total of stated capital and reserves).
**Proit attributable to shareholders of the company divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding.
financial information for the periods 2011 was not adjusted to relect the transition to new/revised sri lanka Accounting 
standards (lKAs/slfRs) applicable for inancial periods beginning on or after 1st January 2012.

FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

(All igures in sri lankan Rupees thousands)
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As at 31st March 2015 2014

Revenue  510,255  452,205 
Other income including interest income  25,368  22,214 
cost of materials and services bought from outside  (248,357)  (233,021)

 287,266  241,398 
Distributed as follows:  %  % 

To employees
as remuneration  123,756  43  110,394  46 

To government
as taxation*  8,640  3  4,353  2 

To providers of capital
as dividend  15,196  5  15,196  6 
as interest and other charges  1,118  -  7,563  3 

Retained in the business 
as deferred taxation  5,818  2  4,423  2 
as notional adjustments on lKAs / slfRs  12,651  4  11,527  5 
as depreciation  39,415  14  36,582  15 
as proit for the year  80,672  28  51,360  21 

 287,266  100  241,398  100 

The statement of value added shows the quantum of wealth generated by the activities of the group and its applications.

* excluding value Added Tax

STATEMENT OF VALUE ADDED

(All igures in sri lankan Rupees thousands)
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1 Stock Exchange Listing

Pegasus Hotels of ceylon Plc, is a public quoted company , the ordinary shares of which are listed on the main board 
of the colombo stock exchange of sri lanka.

The stock exchange code for Pegasus Hotels of ceylon Plc shares is “Peg”.

2 Ordinary Shareholders

2.1 Number of Shareholders

As at 31st March 2015 2014

number of shareholders 2,336  2,308

2.2 Distribution and Composition of Shareholders
The number of shares held by non - Residents as at 31st march 2015 was 128,966 (2014 - 132,187) which amounts to 
0.42% (2014 - 0.43%) of the total number of Ordinary shares.                                        

Residents Non - Residents  Total 

Distribution of Shares
No. of 

Shareholders
No. of 
Shares

% No. of 
Shareholders

No. of 
Shares

% No. of 
Shareholders

No. of 
Shares

%

1 - 1,000  2,091  301,419  1.00  17  5,083  0.02  2,108  306,502  1.02 

1001 - 10,000  188  559,454  1.84 2  8,704  0.02  190  568,158  1.86 

10,001 - 100,000  31  704,328  2.31 3  115,179  0.38  34  819,507  2.69 

100,001 - 1,000,000  3  406,413  1.34  -  -  -  3  406,413  1.34 

Above 1,000,000  1  28,290,958  93.09  -  -  -  1  28,290,958  93.09 

Total  2,314  30,262,572  99.58 22  128,966  0.42  2,336  30,391,538  100.00 

As at 31st March 2015

Categories of Shareholders
No. of 

Shareholders
No. of Shares %

Individuals  2,268  1,559,032 5.13
Institutions  68  28,832,506 94.87
Total  2,336  30,391,538  100.00 

INFORMATION TO SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS
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3 Market performance - Ordinary shares

For the year ended 31st March 2015 2014

As at 31st march (Rs.)  41.00  37.00 
Highest (Rs.)  49.00  43.00 
lowest (Rs.)  35.30  33.00 
value of shares traded (Rs.)  60,363,858  21,304,933 
no. of shares traded  1,383,256  555,038 
volume of transactions (nos.)  2,130  1,430 

4 Market capitalisation

market capitalisation of the company which is the number of ordinary shares in issue multiplied by the market value of an 
ordinary share was Rs. 1,246,053,058/- as at 31st march 2015 (2014 - Rs. 1,124,486,906/-).

5 Public Holding
The percentage of Ordinary shares held by public as at 31st march 2015 was 6.90% (2014 - 6.90%) and the number of 
Public shareholders were 2,333.

6 Dividend

The Directors have recommended a irst & inal dividend of Rs. 0.50 per Ordinary share for the year ended 31st march 
2015 (2014 - Rs. 0.50 per share).

7 Value of property - Land and building

Location
2015

Extent 
(in hectares)

2015
Number of 

Buildings

Market Value
2015

Rs.’000

Date of 
professional 

valuation

Pegasus Reef Hotel, Wattala 5.45 1 988,517  31st march 2012 
equity Hotels limited, Polonnaruwa (lease hold land) 6.03 1 15.059  31st march 2012

8 Number of employees

The number of employees at the end of the year was 181 and 251 (2014 - 168 and 238) for the company and the 
group respectively.

INFORMATION TO SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

(All igures in sri lankan Rupees thousands)
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nOTIce Is HeReby gIven that the fORTy nInTH Annual general meeting of PegAsus HOTels Of ceylOn Plc will be held 
on Wednesday, 17th day of June 2015 at 3.30 p.m. at Pegasus Reef Hotel, santha maria mawatha, Hendala, Wattala, for the 
following purposes :

1. To receive and adopt the Annual Report of the board of Directors and the financial statements for the year ended  
31st march 2015, together with the Report of the Auditors thereon.

2. To declare a dividend as recommended by the Directors.

3. To re-elect mr. D.c.R. gunawardena, who retires in terms of Article 72, 73 and 74 of the Articles of Association of the 
company.

4. To re-elect mr. m. Dayananda as a Director in terms of Article 68 of the Articles of Association of the company. 

5. To re-elect mr. W.A.A. De. Z. gunasekera as a Director in terms of Article 68 of the Articles of Association of the company 
and to re-appoint him as a Director of the company since he is over seventy years of age and to consider and if deemed it 
to pass the following resolution :

 “IT Is HeReby ResOlveD to re-elect mr. W.A.A. De. Z. gunasekera in accordance with Article 68 of the Articles of 
Association of the company and as per section 210 of the companies Act no. 7 of 2007, the age limit stipulated therein 
shall not be applicable to mr. W.A.A. De. Z. gunasekera who is 74 years of age and that he be re-appointed a Director of 
the company from the conclusion of the Annual general meeting for a further period of one year.”

6. To re-appoint mr. s. nagendra as a Director of the company who is over seventy years of age and to consider and if 
deemed it to pass the following resolution :

 “IT Is HeReby ResOlveD that the age limit stipulated in section 210 of the companies Act no. 7of 2007 shall not be 
applicable to mr. s. nagendra who is 75 years of age and that he be re-appointed a Director of the company from the 
conclusion of the Annual general meeting for a further period of one year.” 

7. To re-appoint m/s KPmg, chartered Accountants as Auditors of the company as set out in section 154 (1) of the companies 
Act no. 7 of 2007 and to authorise the Directors to determine their remuneration.

by Order of the board

(sgd.)
K.D. De silva (mrs.)
Director
cARsOns mAnAgemenT seRvIces (PRIvATe) lImITeD
secretaries
colombo, 12th may 2015

Notes

1. A member is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of him/her. A proxy need not be a member of the 
company. A form of Proxy accompanies this notice.

2. The completed form of Proxy must be deposited at the Registered Ofice, no.61, Janadhipathi mawatha, colombo 1, not 
later than 3.30 p.m. on 15th day of June 2015. 

3. A person representing a corporation is required to carry a certiied copy of the resolution authorising him/her to act as the 
representative of the corporation. A representative need not be a member.

4. The transfer books of the company will remain open.

5. Registration will be from 2.00 p.m to 3.30 p.m.

6. security check

We shall be obliged if the shareholders/proxies attending the Annual general meeting, produce their national Identity card to 
the security personnel stationed at the entrance lobby.

NOTICE OF MEETING
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FORM OF PROXY

* I/We …………………………………………………………………………………………………………..........................................

of ………………………………………………………………………………………………………………...........................................

being *a  member/members of PegAsus HOTels Of ceylOn Plc 

hereby appoint ………………………………………………………………………………………………............................................

of …………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….....................................

bearing nIc no./Passport no…………………………………. or failing him/her.

Don chandima Rajakaruna gunawardena or failing him,
manoharan selvanathan or failing him,
Hariharan selvanathan or failing him,
sega nagendra or failing him,
mahendra Dayananda or failing him,    
Wijemuni Asoka Anandalal De Zoysa gunasekera                  

As *my/our proxy to attend at the 49th Annual general meeting of the company to be held on Wednesday the 17th day of June 
2015 at 3.30 p.m. at Pegasus Reef Hotel, santha maria mawatha, Hendala, Wattala and any adjournment thereof and at every 
poll which may be taken in consequence thereof.

for Against

1. To adopt the Annual Report of the board of Directors and the financial statements for the  year ended  
31st march 2015, together with the Report of the Auditors thereon

2. To declare a dividend of 50 cents per share as a irst and inal dividend for the inancial year ended  
31st march 2015, as recommended by the Directors 

3. To re-elect mr. D.c.R. gunawardena who retires by rotation in terms of Articles 72, 73 and 74 of the 
Articles of Association of the company.

4. To re-elect mr. m. Dayananda as a Director in terms of Article 68 of the Articles of Association of the 
company. 

5. To re-elect mr. W.A.A. De Z. gunasekera as a Director in terms of Article 68 of the Articles of Association of 
the company and to re-appoint him as a Director of the company who is over seventy years of age.

6. To re-appoint mr. s. nagendra who is over seventy years of age as a Director of the company

7. To re-appoint m/s KPmg, chartered Accountants as Auditors of the company as set out in section 154 (1) 
of the companies Act no. 7 of 2007 and to authorize the Directors to determine their remuneration

signed this ……… day of ……………………………….Two Thousand and fifteen.   

 signature/s ……………………………………….        
Notes

1. * Please delete the inappropriate words.

2. A shareholder entitled to attend and vote at a general meeting of the company, is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and 
vote instead of him/her and the proxy need not be a shareholder of the company. A proxy so appointed shall have the right 
to vote on a show of hands or on a poll and to speak at the general meeting of the shareholders

3. A shareholder is not entitled to appoint more than one proxy on the same occasion.

4. Instructions are noted on the reverse hereof.
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FORM OF PROXY

INSTRUCTIONS AS TO COMPLETION

1. Kindly perfect the form of proxy after illing in legibly your full name and address, by signing in the space provided. Please ill 
in the date of signature.

2. If you wish to appoint a person other than the Directors as your proxy, please insert the relevant details in the space provided 
overleaf.

3. In terms of Article 54 of the Articles of Association of the company:

(1) Any shareholder entitled to attend and vote at a meeting shall be entitled to appoint another person (whether a shareholder 
or not) as his proxy to attend and vote instead of him. A proxy so appointed shall have the same right as the shareholder to 
vote on a show of hands or on a poll and to speak at the meeting.        

(2) An instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing and :

(i) in the case of an individual shall be signed by the appointor or by his attorney; 

 and   

(ii) in the case of a corporation shall be either under its common seal or signed by its attorney or by an authorised oficer 
on behalf of the corporation.

The Directors may, but shall not be bound to, require evidence of the authority of any such attorney or authorised oficer. 

4. In terms of Article 50 of the Articles of Association of the company :

 Where there are joint registered holders of any share any one (01) of such persons may vote and be reckoned in a quorum  
at any meeting either personally or by proxy as if he were solely entitled thereto and if more than one (01) of such joint 
holders be so present at any meeting one (01) of such persons so present whose name stands irst in the Register in respect of 
such share shall alone be entitled to vote in respect thereof. several executors or administrators of a deceased shareholder in 
whose name any share stands shall for the purpose of this Article be deemed joint holders thereof. 

5. To be valid the completed form of proxy should be deposited at the Registered Ofice of the company situated at no. 61, 
Janadhipathi mawatha, colombo 1 not later than 3.30 p.m. on 15th June 2015. 

Please ill in the following details

name    : …………………………………………………………................................................................

Address : …………………………………………………………................................................................

    …………………………………………………………................................................................

Jointly with : …………………………………………………………................................................................

share folio no. : …………………………………………………………................................................................
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Pegasus Hotels of Ceylon PLC
(A Carson Cumberbatch Company)

Company Registration No 
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Legal Form 
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